
Date Published:31 October 2017     

Police and Crime Panel

Wednesday 8 November 2017 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

ORGANISATION ITEMS

1  APOLOGIES Stephen Bace

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST Stephen Bace

3  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 10) Stephen Bace

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  CHIEF EXECUTIVE REPORT (Pages 11 - 28) Paul Trott

5  CHILD PROTECTION 

A verbal update on response to the HMIC Safeguarding inspection.

Superintendent 
Steve Porter

6  ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 29 - 38)

Consideration of the Commissioner’s Annual Report (deferred from 
previous meeting). 

PCC Martin Surl

7  FORCE CONTROL ROOM 

The Panel will be provided with details of the reorganisation of the 
Force Control Room.

Rod Hansen

8  POLICE AND CRIME PLAN HIGHLIGHT REPORT (Pages 39 - 58) Richard Bradley



    

9  THE 'COMPASSIONATE APPROACH' 

Consideration of the compassionate approach towards animals and 
the environmental footprint of the Constabulary detailed within the 
Police and Crime Plan. 

PCC Martin Surl

INFORMATION ITEM

Next meetings:

5 February 2018
16 March 2018

Membership –  Cllr David Brown, Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Loraine Patrick, Cllr Steve Robinson, 
Cllr Brian Tipper and Cllr Will Windsor-Clive Cllr Julian Beale, Cllr Ray Brassington, Cllr Gerald 
Dee, Cllr Collette Finnegan, Cllr Rob Garnham, Cllr Bruce Hogan, Cllr Karen McKeown, Cllr Chris 
Nelson and Cllr Keith Pearson

Added Members - Martin Smith (Independent member), William Alexander (Independent member)

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer 
(Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny Team)
:01452 324204 /fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Will Members please sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see p64 of the 

Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject 
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please contact Democratic Services (tel 
01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of 
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services 
Officer on duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
MINUTES of a meeting of the Police and Crime Panel held on Friday 8 September 2017 at 
the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT: Cllr Ray Brassington, Cllr David Brown,  Cllr Colette Finnegan, Cllr Rob 
Garnham, Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Helena McCloskey, Cllr Chris Nelson, Cllr 
Loraine Patrick, Cllr Steve Robinson, Martin Smith, Cllr Brian Tipper, Cllr 
Will Windsor Clive (Chair)

Substitutes: Cllr Clive Walford (for Cllr Gerald Dee), Cllr Jane Horne (for Cllr Bruce 
Hogan)

In attendance: PCC Martin Surl, Paul Trott (Chief Executive OPCC), Richard 
Bradley, Stewart Edgar (Operation Director), Stephen Bace 
(Democratic Services), Kate Langley (Young People Becoming 
Adults Priority Lead), Chief Inspector Paul Dutton. 

Apologies: Cllr Karen McKeown, William Alexander, Cllr Julian Beale, Cllr Keith 
Pearson.

21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No additional declarations made.

22 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

Minutes agreed as a correct record.

22.1 The Chairman explained that following a recruitment process William Alexander 
had been appointed as the second independent co-optee. 

Cllr Colin Hay and Cllr Steve Robinson had been on the interview panel with the 
Chairman. Cllr Hay explained that in future it would be important to consider how 
the position was advertised to ensure that there was diversity in the candidates. 

22.2 Members requested that in future an action sheet be provided with the minutes to 
committee.
ACTION Stephen Bace

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

22.3 The Panel asked for confirmation that HMIC would be returning in September and 
an update on the outcome of their report. Some members noted the work the 
County Council had been doing to improve their services in response to the Ofsted 
inspection and asked what the Constabulary was doing. It was explained that the 
Commissioner’s Office were waiting for the report to come back but that the 
Constabulary was confident that there would be a better outcome. Regular 
meetings were being held between the Commissioner and Chief Constable. The 
Panel requested an update at the November meeting. 
ACTION Stephen Bace/ Paul Trott

22.4 Some members queried when the summit (involving all those partners and 
organisations to decide how best to support vulnerable children) would be arranged 
as detailed at the previous meeting. The Commissioner welcomed the opportunity 
to update detailing that he had met with facilitators in the previous week and had 
spoken to partners with the aim to have something held at the end of Autumn. This 
was not about ‘pointing fingers’ but about understanding what ‘good looked like’. 

22.5 One member asked for an update on the new neighbourhood policing offer. The 
Commissioner explained that the Constabulary had asked to have until January to 
deliver this to ensure that the offer was robust. The Panel asked whether an update 
might be provided at the next meeting. The Commissioner would discuss with the 
Chief Constable if he was available to update the Panel at the next meeting.
ACTION Martin Surl/ Stephen Bace

23 CHIEF EXECUTIVE REPORT 

23.1 Paul Trott presented the report detailing Freedom of Information requests and 
Complaints. He explained that there had been a slight rise in complaints in 
comparison to the previous five years. 

23.2 The crime data was set out within the report and showed that crime had risen over 
the previous 6 months with a spike in March and April. This had been replicated 
across the Country. In most parts of the County, districts were performing well 
against comparators across the country, the exception was Cheltenham and the 
Constabulary was taking action to address that.  Access had been given to IQuanta 
data which could not be published but was more up to date. Encouragingly, despite 
the rise in crime across the country, 5 out of 6 districts were performing very well 
against comparators.  In response to a question regarding Cheltenham it was 
explained that there had been an increase in violent crime but that resources were 
being redeployed into that area. 

23.3 The Criminal Justice Board had previously been chaired by the former Chief 
Constable but since her retirement was now being chaired by the Police and Crime 
Commissioner. It was felt that there was now greater ownership of the issues that 
needed to be addressed. The Board would be reviewed to consider its 
effectiveness. Members understood that the Inspectorate examination of the 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Probation Trust had not been favourable. The Commissioner expressed concern 
that the companies carrying out the work were not sharing the figures.  This report 
would be circulated to the Panel. 
ACTION Paul Trott

23.4 One member noted the 17 complaints that had been recorded as one complaint. 
The rationale for this was that it was the same letter circulated as part of a 
campaign related to the badger cull. The particular complaint centred around the 
use of the radio technology issued by DEFRA to the contractors.  

23.5 It was suggested that the Panel receive an item on wildlife crime, detailing the 
resources put into it and number of prosecutions. The Commissioner explained that 
this was part of the police and crime plan called the ‘compassionate approach’.  He 
suggested the item could include the compassionate approach to animals and 
environmental footprint of the constabulary.
ACTION Stephen Bace/ Richard Bradley

23.6 Cllr Colette Finnegan referred to an incident In Gloucester and referred to the 
professional manner in which the Constabulary had responded. She asked that the 
congratulations from herself and the Cabinet Member at Gloucester City Council be 
passed on.

23.7 Some members commented that some thought needed to be given to the way in 
which agendas were structured and the items the Panel chose to focus on.

23.8 One member asked for details of how a complaint was classified as ‘unknown’ 
within the report. The Office would provide clarification.
ACTION Ruth Greenwood.

23.9 The Panel discussed the recent update regarding ‘Emergency Service 
Collaboration’ within the report. Members had been circulated a report from the 
consultants who had worked on behalf of the Commissioner to consider the viability 
of moving the governance of the service to the Commissioner’s Office. In addition, 
the Commissioner had circulated his report with a conclusion that he would not be 
proceeding with the business case at this time.

23.10 One member expressed his concerns regarding the criticisms of the County Council 
in the report. He explained that contrary to the report the County Council had a 
Medium Term Financial Strategy that included the Fire and Rescue Service and 
that the estates strategy was supported by government grants. With regards to 
comments within the report that the Leader of Council and Cabinet Member had not 
been willing to engage with the Consultants, the member explained that he had 
received a copy of an email which showed that they had been willing to meet, but 
after the County Council’s pre-election period. 

23.11 In addition, concern was raised about the criticism of scrutiny within the report. One 
member stated that the Fire and Rescue Service was scrutinised by Environment 
and Communities Scrutiny as well as by the relevant Cabinet Member. The reports 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

were also in the public arena. Scrutiny at the County Council produced an annual 
report which the member suggested was more comprehensive then the annual 
report the Commissioner had produced. The member acknowledged that the 
consultant report had stated that the case around governance of the Fire and 
Rescue Service was ‘finely balanced’. He stated his view that the best place for the 
service was the County Council.

23.12 There was some discussion around the availability of Fire and Rescue Service 
resources for the police. The Chief Fire Officer stated that Fire Stations were 
available for Constabulary use. As part of the discussion, the Chairman made 
reference to the Commissioner closing his local police station in Newent. The 
Commissioner explained that the station had been closed in 2011 before he had 
taken office and that any questions or comments should be addressed to the 
previous Chair of the Police Authority. 

23.13 The Chairman stated that the Commissioner had spent £100,000 of public money 
which had been a waste of time. The Commissioner explained that the home 
secretary had provided the money and that he had been encouraged by the 
minister to bid. He stated that the review had been independent and that it was 
important to put the public first. He explained that he had decided not to proceed 
because there had been too much opposition. He explained that if there were 
issues with the Fire and Rescue Service performance then it was something he 
would look at again. 

23.14 The Commissioner questioned whether comments made by the Chairman were 
being made by him as a local politician or as Chairman of the Police and Crime 
Panel. He reminded him of the role of the Panel to be a critical friend as well as to 
support him in the effective exercise of his functions. He expressed concern that a 
press release on the issue had been sent out on Conservative party paper. The 
Chairman stated that comments made by members including himself on the Fire 
and Rescue Service had been made as part of a cross party resolution made by the 
County Council. He explained that most people had declared that position.

23.15 The Commissioner asked that the Panel move on from what he felt were politicised 
comments and focus on the importance of collaboration between the Fire and 
Rescue Service and Constabulary. The Commissioner again stated he was 
committed to collaboration and would be watching progress keenly. If at any point 
progress was being unduly hindered, the commissioner said he would reconsider 
his position and submit a business case to the Home Secretary for a change of 
governance. The Commissioner stressed the importance of a dedicated ring-fenced 
mid-term financial strategy for the Fire and Rescue Authority. 

23.16 Some members commented on the apparent ‘bad feeling’ that had been created by 
the discussion around the governance of the Fire and Rescue Service. It was felt 
that it was important to move on now that the reports had been made and 
conclusions drawn.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

23.17 In response to a question, the Commissioner explained that he had given the 
instruction to have the role of Chief Constable advertised now that the business 
case for the change in governance was not now being taken forward.

23.18 The Commissioner had informed the Chairman of the Panel earlier in the week that 
he needed to leave the meeting at 11am due to a meeting with the Home 
Secretary. One member asked why the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner 
would not be present to deputise for him for the remainder of the meeting. The 
Panel was informed that the Deputy was at the Podsmead and Matson 
Regeneration Meeting and could not attend. Officers would be present to respond 
and to take back questions where required. The Commissioner then left the 
meeting. 

23.19 One member commented that there were real issues to discuss with the 
Commissioner and that at the first opportunity for a deputy to be present, the deputy 
was not there. He emphasised that the Police and Crime Panel were the only body 
with the role to scrutinise the Commissioner and he asked that a letter be written to 
the Commissioner expressing the disappointment that neither the Commissioner 
nor Deputy was present for the second half of the meeting. 

23.20 In response, one member explained that the Panel was looking to reduce the 
tensions and antagonism and that a letter would not be helpful. 

23.21 In response to a question, the Chief Executive of the Commissioner’s Office 
clarified that the role of the Deputy Commissioner had not been created directly in 
relation to anticipation of an expanded remit based on Fire and Rescue Service 
Governance. The position had been created due to the magnitude of the job and 
travel requirements and concerns for the Commissioner’s health in maintaining the 
workload. 

23.22 Another member commented that he had concerns about how the Commissioner 
viewed the Panel and felt that the Panel needed to look at the way it worked in 
order to help develop a more constructive relationship. 

23.23 Some members emphasised the importance of ‘leaving political colours at the door’. 
While members expressed concern about the Commissioner leaving the meeting 
and the disrespect shown to the Panel, they felt it was important to move forward in 
a positive way. 

24 ANNUAL REPORT 

As the Commissioner was unavailable, the Annual Report would be deferred until 
the next meeting. 
ACTION Martin Surl/ Stephen Bace

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

25 SAFER GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

25.1 Richard Bradley reminded the Panel of the review of community safety conducted 
the previous year. As a result of that review, Safer Gloucestershire had been 
created. The first meeting had been held in July and, from that meeting, a number 
of documents were being prepared. This included the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment and a protocol to share information.  The main thrust of the meeting 
was to ensure an integrated approach. At the next meeting on 8 October those 
documents would be brought forward. The meetings were ‘closed’ officer meetings 
held at police headquarters.  

25.2 One member asked whether Safer Gloucestershire included Road Safety. It was 
explained that Safe and Social Driving was a priority within the plan and that work 
was underway with colleagues in Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service. The 
Lead of the priority Stewart Edgar explained that officers continued to work hard on 
Road Safety. The Chief Constable and Chief Fire Officer continued to have regular 
discussions and there were a number of opportunities created through the change 
in the Constabulary’s operating model.   

26 POLICE AND CRIME PLAN PRIORITIES HIGHLIGHT REPORT 

26.1 One member commented on the Motorcycle Safety Operation in the Forest of Dean 
and asked that this be brought to the Cotswolds.  

26.2 One member questioned the recruitment of the Youth Support Workers as detailed 
on page 35 of the agenda pack. It was explained that the Constabulary made a 
contribution to that. 

27 YOUNG PEOPLE BECOMING ADULTS 

27.1 Kate Langley, strategic lead for youth justice in Gloucestershire was the lead on the 
priority area for the Commissioner. Chief Inspector Paul Dutton was the head of 
emergency response for Gloucestershire and Chair of the youth justice partnership 
board.  Paul outlined the six objectives of the partnership:

 Raise awareness of young people – ensure young people have a voice, 
dignity and respect.

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

 Reduce first time entrants into the criminal justice system – reducing the time 
they spend with the police. 

 Anti-social behaviour – supporting through early intervention
 Create strong and successful partnership for young people
 Communication strategy across Gloucestershire

27.2 The Panel were informed of the overarching piece of work, ‘Children First – 
restorative intervention.’ The focus was to keep young people out of the criminal 
justice system, based on the evidence that young people were more likely to 
continue to offend once in it. 

27.3 Consultation had been undertaken since April with project support from the 
Constabulary to further develop it. A key stakeholder group had been established 
who met fortnightly, this included the Police, Youth Support Team, Restorative 
Gloucestershire and the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner.  The project 
would be going live from 6 November. 

27.4 Members were provided with the aim of Children First:

• To divert children and young people away from the formal criminal justice 
system wherever possible and reduce unnecessary criminalisation 
particularly of vulnerable groups e.g.  children in care, learning difficulties, 
mental health problems.

• To encourage children and young people to take responsibility for their own 
actions and promote reintegration into their communities

• To ensure children and young people are offered the right support in order to 
prevent further offending at the earliest opportunity

•  To make restorative Interventions the norm and default disposal for children 
and young people who offend.

• To see the child first and offender second

• To put the victim at the heart of the youth justice system

27.5 The Panel were informed of the creation of informal pre-court disposals - 
interventions which would not result in a criminal record. There was still ‘teeth’ in 
response to non compliance with the processes that would then come into play. 
The key to the work was information gathering from a range a sources to ensure a 
comprehensive picture of the young person could be developed. 

27.6 It was explained that the work could have an impact on the adult system through 
preventative measures – early identification of children in need. 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

27.7 Members understood that the work had been carried out by Surrey who had seen 
real outcomes in significant reductions in children in care offending as well as 
reductions in the number attending court and a reduction in youth crime. 

27.8 One member stated that this work would specifically help with BME communities. In 
addition he commented that the County Council had difficulites recruiting social 
workers and asked about the amount of social workers that managed to get to the 
magistrate court. In response it was explained that the presence of social workers 
in court supporting young people was taken very seriously. With regards to 
education, 50% of young people in the Criminal Justice system were not in 
employment training or education. 

27.9 In response to a question it was explained that the work started at the age of 10. 
One of the options after assessment might be to work with families including 
functional families’ therapy.

27.10 One member commented on the good work of ‘Great Expectations’ in Cheltenham 
and wondered whether this would be expanding into other parts of the County. In 
response it was explained that this was work that was key to the priority and the 
hope was that it could be expanded, subject to the resources being made available.  

27.11 There was some discussion around the impact of education, specifically reading 
age, on those offending. In response it was explained, that there was a subgroup 
on education. 

27.12 The slides would be circulated.
ACTION Stephen Bace

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 12:15

Page 8



Police and Crime Panel
ACTION SHEET

8 September 2017

TOPIC ACTION REQUIRED RESPONSIBILITY OUTCOME
1 Minutes of the 

previous meeting Members requested that in 
future an action sheet be 
provided with the minutes to 
committee.

Update on HMIC Safeguarding 
at the November meeting.

One member asked for an 
update on the new 
neighbourhood policing offer. 
The Commissioner would 
discuss with the Chief 
Constable if he was available to 
update the Panel at the next 
meeting.

Stephen Bace 

Paul Trott/ 
Stephen Bace

PCC Martin Surl

Action sheet 
developed. 

Update to be 
provided 
through Chief 
Executive’s 
report.

Added to work 
plan.

2 Chief Executive’s 
Report Report on the Probation Trust to 

be circulated to members. 

It was suggested that the Panel 
receive an item on wildlife 
crime, detailing the resources 
put into it and number of 
prosecutions. The 
Commissioner explained that 
this was part of the police and 
crime plan called the 
compassionate approach.  He 
suggested the item could 
include the compassionate 
approach to animals and 
environmental footprint of the 
constabulary.

One member asked for details 
of how a complaint is classified 
as unknown within the report. 
The Office would provide 
clarification.

Paul Trott

Stephen Bace/ 
Richard Bradley

Ruth Greenwood

 

Circulated on 5 
October 2017.

Added to work 
plan.

Circulated on 5 
October 2017.

Page 9



3 Annual Report As the Commissioner was 
unavailable, the Annual Report 
would be deferred until the next 
meeting. 

Martin Surl/ 
Stephen Bace

 
Added to work 
plan.

428. YOUNG PEOPLE 
BECOMING 
ADULTS 

Circulate the slides to members Stephen Bace Slides 
published on 
website for 
members. 

Page 10



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel
8th November 2017

Report of the Chief Executive

This is my report to the Police and Crime Panel on the activities of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s Office. It is intended to assist the Panel in reviewing and scrutinising decisions 
made and actions taken by the Commissioner, in accordance with its statutory responsibilities.

1 Decisions

1.1 The complete decision log may be viewed on the OPCC’s website here.  

1.2 As previously requested, a summary of decisions is provided in the table below covering 
the period since the last Panel meeting (September 2017):

Month Reference Subject Matter Decision
Sep D32-2017 Non publishable – not a matter of public interest.
Sep D33-2017 Virtual Desktop Infrastructure (VDI)

The report summarised the now 
closed VDI project (as confirmed at 
OPCC Governance Board in 
September 2016) giving a clear 
timeline of decisions and outcomes 
for both organisational learning and 
audit purposes.  The changing 
nature of the organisation and 
advances in technology led to the 
VDI project being decommissioned 
with a repurposed spend of 
£678,085 against a projected spend 
of £1.08M

Recommendations agreed: 
 Apply clear and detailed 

governance of projects with close 
project management rigor at every 
stage.

 Regularly review ICT projects of this 
magnitude as technology moves 
very quickly while the benefits are 
often not realised from the original 
business case.

 Put in place regular project and 
programme audits and gateway 
reviews.

Sep D34-2017 Non publishable due to commercial sensitivity.
Sep D34-2017 Non publishable due to commercial sensitivity.
Sep D35-2017 Non publishable – not a matter of public interest.

2 Freedom of Information Act requests and complaints (01 January – 30 October 2017)

2.1 Please note that due to the deadline for reports to be submitted to the Police & Crime 
Panel, the following data is up to 30th October 2017, not to the end of the calendar month.

2.2 As of the 30th of October, the OPCC received 26 Freedom of Information requests.  This 
compares to 45 in the same period last year and represents a 42% (19) decrease. 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

http://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/transparency/reports/decisions/


GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

2.3 Of the FOI requests made to the OPCC this year, 4 were redirected to the Constabulary (as 
the request related to information held within the Force), 1 required a joint 
OPCC/Constabulary response, 21 were for OPCC held information and of these, 2 were 
withdrawn (1x OPCC and 1x OPCC/Constabulary).  Excluding the withdrawn request, a 
total of 111 questions were asked during this period under the Freedom of Information Act.
 

2.4 The charts below provides an overview of FOI applicants by type and by request theme 
(excluding the two withdrawn requests): 

2.5 FOIs regarding high profile crime types constitute the largest category of requests received 
by the OPCC (21% / 5).  This includes questions about domestic abuse, homicide data and 
hunting with dogs.

Page 12



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

2.6 One hundred and ninety-seven complaints were made to the OPCC in the period 1st 
January to 30th October 2017 from members of the public.  This represents an 11% 
increase (20) compared to the same period last year.  

Number of complaints received by the OPCC by area and year 
(Jan to October)

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Cheltenham 39 27 29 18 22
Cotswolds 32 23 8 17 29
Forest of Dean 31 33 24 31 33
Gloucester 29 27 30 42 43
Stroud 29 42 31 25 28
Tewkesbury 16 13 12 10 3
Gloucestershire 32 10 7 11 9
Out of 
Gloucestershire 15 17 8 5 8

Unknown 4 23 29 18 22
TOTAL 257 215 178 177 197

2.7 The charts and table above show that the largest number of complaints received from 1st 
January to 30th October 2017 were from Gloucester (22%), followed by the Forest of Dean 
(17%), the Cotswolds (15%) and Stroud (14%).

2.8 The table below outlines complaint types by area for 1st January to 30th October 2017.  
Complaints received by the OPCC are broadly categorised and include a wide range of 
issues to facilitate analysis for this report.  

Page 13



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

Complaints received by the OPCC by area and type (01 Jan – 30 Oct 2017)
Complaint 
Type Chelt. Cots. FoD Glos. Stroud Tewkes. Glo’shire Total 

ASB report 3 7 3 6 6 1 0 26
Crime report 2 6 8 7 2 1 2 28
Road safety 
issue 6 4 5 5 10 1 1 32

Police service 5 8 11 21 3 0 4 52
Police 
presence 0 3 1 1 1 0 0 6

OPCC 
complaint 2 0 1 1 1 0 0 5

Badger cull 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Other 3 1 4 2 5 0 1 16
Unknown 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

2.9 The table above shows that the greatest number of complaints received by the OPCC are 
categorised as police service followed by road safety issues and reports of crime and 
antisocial behaviour.  

2.10 Since the start of the badger cull, the OPCC has received three generic complaints about 
the operation via fifty e-mails.  Two of the complaints relate to firearms licensing and the 
third querying whether the cull should be halted due to the adverse weather conditions.  
Please note that the majority of complainants do not specify the area in which they live 
hence only one report being included in the table above.    

3 Crime data

3.1 Since the last Panel meeting, national media attention has been given to crime trends in 
England and Wales.  The Office for National Statistics (ONS) report Crime Survey for 
England and Wales (CSEW) which looks at crime rates up to June 2017, shows that since 
1995, crime has fallen considerably but has begun to rise in recent years.  The chart below 
is taken from the ONS report:

Crime in England and Wales: year ending December 1981 to year ending June 2017

Page 14

http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-41677046
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/crimeinenglandandwales/june2017
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/crimeinenglandandwales/june2017


GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

3.2 The police recorded crime series covers a wider range of offences than the CSEW but is 
restricted to those crimes that have been reported to and recorded by the police. From the 
1980s until the late 1990s, trends in police recorded crime broadly followed those shown by 
the CSEW, but changes to recording rules and processes resulted in rises between 1998 
and 2004 that did not reflect changes in crime as estimated by the CSEW. The two sources 
then both showed a downward trend until the early 2010s, when a renewed focus on 
improving crime recording resulted in further increases in the police series each year. The 
size of year-on-year increases has grown, with police recorded crime increasing by 5% in 
the year ending June 2015, by 7% in the year ending June 2016, and by 13% in the latest 
year.  

3.3 The OPCC is able to compare national and local crime rates via various Home Office 
performance management tools.  Unfortunately, due to the conditions of use we are unable 
to share the full content publically but the table below provides information about how 
Gloucestershire is performing when compared to the national picture.  The data we are 
using to compare is British Crime Survey Comparator Crimes (BCS Crimes) and are 
chosen because they represent those crimes that (according to the British Crime Survey) 
cause the most amount of harm to communities. For the purpose of comparison, the same 
time parameters have been used as in the CSEW report (up to June 2017) along with the 
most recent data available (up to August 2017).

July 2016 - June 2017 compared to 
July 2015 - June 2016

Sep 2016 - Aug 2017 compared to 
Sep 2015 - Aug 2016Crime type

Glos. SW MSG E&W Glos. SW MSG E&W
BCS Comparator 
Crimes % 
difference

+7.5% +7.4% +10.9% +10.5% +6.1% -1.9% +10.8% +10%

Glos. position in 
MSG  (1=good) 3 (out of 8) 2 (out of 8)

Key:
Glos. Gloucestershire
SW South West
MSG Most Similar Group
E&W England & Wales

3.4 The table above shows that although crime is increasing, Gloucestershire is performing well 
in comparison to those areas deemed most with demographically similar (Most Similar 
Group) and in comparison to England and Wales.  Regionally, performance is similar. 

3.5 The tables below compare BCS Crime in the six areas in Gloucestershire with their 
respective MSGs.  The time parameters are the same as above:

Area
MSG position (out of 15) for BCS 
crime in the 12m period up to the 

end of June 2017 (1 = good)

MSG position (out of 15) for BCS 
crime in the 12m period up to the 

end of Aug 2017 (1 = good)
Gloucestershire (out of 
8) 3 2

Cheltenham 10 10
Cotswolds 4 4
Forest of Dean 3 3
Gloucester 3 3
Stroud 2 1
Tewkesbury 4 6

Page 15



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

Area
Rate per 1000 population 

for BCS crime in the 12m period up 
to the end of June 2017

Rate per 1000 population 
for BCS crime in the 12m period up 

to the end of Aug 2017
Gloucestershire 27.8 28.0
South West 31.6 29.2
Most Similar Group for 
Gloucestershire 31.1 31.6

England & Wales 39.9 40.2

Cheltenham
41.4 

(MSG for Cheltenham average 
39.2)

40.7 
(MSG for Cheltenham average 

39.5)

Cotswolds 16.9 
(MSG for Cotswolds average 20.4)

17.3 
(MSG for Cotswolds average 20.7)

Forest of Dean 19.8 
(MSG for FOD average 23.3)

20.4 
(MSG for FOD average 23.6)

Gloucester 41.6 
(MSG for Gloucester average 48.7)

41.4 
(MSG for Gloucester average 49.2)

Stroud  18.3
(MSG for Stroud average 23.6)

 18.4 
(MSG for Stroud average 24.0)

Tewkesbury
 20.9 

(MSG For Tewkesbury average 
25.0)

 21.9 
(MSG for Tewkesbury average 

25.4)

3.6 The tables above show that when compared to peers, the areas across Gloucestershire are 
performing very well.  Despite recent increases in crime, crime rates are actually low in 
Gloucestershire making it one of the safest places in the region and country.  In fact in the 
Cotswolds for example, the rate of crime is nearly two and a half times lower than the 
national average and twice as low as the regional average.

3.7 Crime trends and performance are continually monitored by the Policy Officers in the OPCC 
in order that the PCC is able to hold the Chief Constable to account in accordance with his 
statutory responsibilities.

4 Holding to account

4.1 Crime performance is one of the issues the PCC has discussed recently in his holding to 
account meetings with the Chief Constable.  The OPCC has recently refreshed the 
approach to holding to account in a new policy and, in line with our commitment to 
transparency, the topics of these meetings are now shared on the OPCC website here.  

4.2 The table below summarises the topics of discussion at recent holding to account meetings:

Month of HTA 
meetings Topics of discussion:

June

 The Constabulary's approach to Neighbourhood Policing
 How the Constabulary intends to develop its Specialist Capabilities
 The HMIC report of the Constabulary and the Ofsted inspection of the 

County Council in relation to child protection in Gloucestershire
 Call handling in the Force Control Room
 Crime rates
 The Strategic Policing Requirement and the Local Resilience Forum
 Animal cruelty allegations in Hartpury

July

 Mounted Policing. 
 HR Department and Vetting Unit. 
 Call handling in the Force Control Room. 
 Governance of the Fire and Rescue Service 
 Child Protection – response to HMIC report. 

Page 16

https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/the-office-that-supports-the-pcc/transparency/meetings/holding-to-account/


GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

Month of HTA 
meetings Topics of discussion:

 Crime Rates. 

August

 The Emergency Services Communications Project 
 The review of the Gloucestershire Constabulary vehicle fleet 
 HMIC's review of child protection 
 The need for an Enterprise Resource Planning system 
 Neighbourhood policing 
 Rural crime and policing 
 A proposed firearms surrender campaign 
 The Constabulary and OPCC open day 
 Digital transformation 
 A review of the Tri-Force Specialist Operations Unit 
 The procurement of strategic financial and other advice 
 The trial of spitguards in the Custody Centre 
 Mounted policing

September No meeting held

October

 The Constabulary/OPCC Approach to Collaboration 
 A new style of public reception at Bearlands 
 Flu vaccinations for officers and staff 
 The Aston project website 
 Community Safety Accreditation Scheme 
 Collaboration with Highways England 
 Fire and Rescue Service governance and future collaboration 

5 Regional Collaboration

5.1 Regional collaboration discussions have been initiated again to explore potential 
opportunities for collaboration.  Gloucestershire Constabulary and the Police and Crime 
Commissioner are committed to working collaboratively with others where this:
 supports the delivery of the Police and Crime Plan;
 builds resilience, capability and capacity to provide the best possible overall service to 

our communities;
 enables longer-term operational effectiveness and economy through greater 

interoperability, integration or joint-working of policing and public services; and
 achieves value for money through economies of scale, increased efficiency, greater 

effectiveness, or improved potential for sustainable delivery.

5.2 In line with the Police and Crime Plan the Constabulary and the PCC seek opportunities to 
develop our relationships with our closest neighbours in the South West and other adjoining 
forces to ensure the Constabulary is fully interoperable and policing our borders is 
seamless. We will maintain a strong focus on opportunities to
increase interoperability, effectiveness and efficiency through alignment of ICT platforms 
and systems.  To this end, Superintendent Charlie Laporte has been appointed as a 
regional liaison officer for the Constabulary and OPCC.

5.3 The Constabulary and the PCC have agreed and support the national NPCC and APCC's 
‘Policing Vision 2025’. Our approach is to do this through a mix of greater national 
alignment, engagement in non-geographical policing collaborations, regional policing 
collaborations and local partnerships and other initiatives with statutory and
non-statutory partners within the County (especially in the field of community safety). 

5.4 With regards to regional collaboration, we are committed to:
 building operational collaboration with national, regional and sub-regional policing 

partners to enable us to build greater consistency and

Page 17



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

interoperability, and enable us to keep communities safe from national threats 
that require cross-boundary police response;

 building collaboration in delivery of business support functions in line with the NPCC 
and APCC's vision 2025. This will involve a mix of policing and
non-policing partners to best preserve and support frontline services; and 

 to working with a range of valued local partners to deliver community safety across 
Gloucestershire. We continue to drive this through active partnerships, collaborations, 
engagement and commissioning of local services.

5.5 Our key objectives for regional collaboration in 2017-18 are to:
 determine potential opportunities and benefits of greater collaboration with 

Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service operationally and in respect of the  Policing and 
Crime Act 2017 ‘duty to collaborate’;

 deliver our contribution to the national armed officer uplift in line with 
national timescales;

 ensure successful delivery of Police Transformation Funded projects on Digital 
Intelligence and Investigations, development of a Collaborative Service Platform and 
the National Citizens in Policing Strategy;

 scope opportunities and benefits of moving to a police collaborated managed service 
for HR and other transactional business support services; and

 work to maintain standards of local provision for victims of sexual assault through the 
Sexual Assault Referral Centre (SARC).

6 Commissioner’s Fund

6.1 Each year the Commissioner allocates 1% of the policing budget, c.£1million, to The 
Commissioner’s Fund. The money is used to fund projects and programmes that support 
the delivery of the Police and Crime Plan and its priorities.

6.2 The Commissioner’s Fund is open to a variety of applicants – public sector, voluntary 
sector, community groups. This is a competitive process with limited funds; therefore not all 
applications will be successful. Organisations who have previously been awarded 
funding are welcome to apply again, either to expand the existing project or with an 
alternative idea. Unfortunately, we are unable to reconsider previous funding requests in 
order to top up the funds the project did not receive in past funding rounds. 

6.3 The tables below outline the criteria and the types of projects / schemes that are likely to 
receive funding:

Essential criteria for Commissioner’s Fund bids Desirable criteria for Commissioner’s Fund bids

Match funding is desirable
Projects must take place within Gloucestershire Projects should bring organisations and people 

together to co-operate in tackling problems or 
promoting new ideas
Projects must aim to become sustainable and 
not become dependent on PCC funding.Projects must support the delivery of one or 

more of the six priorities Projects must be able to demonstrate evidence 
based outcomes.

Schemes more likely to receive funding Schemes less likely to receive funding

Practical work Individual’s salary
Feasibility studies or research projects Replacement of statutory funding or salaries
Group or partnership development Expeditions or trips 
Awareness raising Bursaries and scholarships

Page 18



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

Training Building costs
Equipment and materials Vehicles

Marketing and promotion        

CCTV 
(NB: CCTV is not something we would typically 
fund, therefore we have a policy related to 
CCTV funding that states what all CCTV funding 
requests will be subject to in order to be 
considered.

6.4 This year, the OPCC has introduced four funding categories (see below) that can be 
applied for. To facilitate the process, particularly for smaller bids, the information required in 
an application increases with the amount requested.  

1. Smaller applications Category 1: £1 - £1,000
Category 2: £1,000 - £5,000 Deadline: 30 September 2017

2. Bigger applications Category 3: £5,000 - £20,000 
Category 4: £20,000 + Deadline: 31 October 2017

6.5 The application process is outlined below:

6.6 As indicated above, the smaller funding application deadline closed on the 30th of 
September 2017.  The Commissioning Team received 24 applications for funding up to 
£5,000, requesting £66,440 in total until 2021.  Eighty-three percent of these applications 
were for £1,000-£5,000 and the remaining fifteen percent for £1-£1,000.

6.7 The breakdown of applications by area and priority are shown below.  Please note that 
some applications cross over multiple priorities, so these have been collated appropriately.

Page 19



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

6.8 The deadline for larger applications (£5,000+) is the 31st of October 2017. To date we have 
received 11 applications, requesting £588,037 in total until 2021.

7 Court Estate

7.1 The Commissioner has started discussions with Her Majesty’s Courts and Tribunals 
Service (HMCTS) regarding the possibility of building a new, multi-purpose courthouse 
within the Waterwells Campus.

7.2 Having recently taken on the Chair of the Local Criminal Justice Board (LCJB), the PCC 
visited the court estate at Gloucester Crown and Cheltenham Magistrates Court and was 
surprised at the poor standard of accommodation.  He has discussed with the Board his 
intention to create a new court hub for the county, with criminal and civil courts all in one 
building with the aim of raising the standard of facilities for all those who use the courts, 
including victims, defendants, court staff and other professional users and will provide the 
county with a suitable building.

7.3 The current courts have not been updated for some considerable time and are thought by 
many to be inadequate to deal with the effective and efficient administration of justice that 
both victims and defendants are entitled to.  Both of the Magistrates or Crown Courts have 
a lack of adequate/separate waiting facilities for different parties, a lack of private 
consultation space for professional users and their clients, no catering on site (except 
vending machines) and the buildings themselves struggle to meet witness/defendant 
requirements, such as separate entrances and adjustments for those with disabilities. 

Page 20



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

7.4 Many of the agencies involved in the criminal justice system in the county feel that the court 
estate here has been overlooked, with many other regions (including Bristol) having had 
new court buildings and there is a real concern that this could result in local justice being 
moved further afield.  The PCC has provisionally consulted with the wider Board members 
who all support the proposed new build and further, more specific discussions have been 
held with local HMCTS personnel who have contributed to the provisional design 
specification accommodate many MoJ initiatives, such as live links, pre-recorded video 
testimony for vulnerable victims and the other reforms due between now and 2025.

7.5 The OPCC owns a large plot of land opposite the new custody suite on the corner of 
Edison Close and Telford Way and is working in conjunction with a well-respected 
architects firm, Napper Architects Ltd, to draw up some plans which will be consulted upon 
and formally presented to the MoJ, ideally with the backing of the county to support and 
drive the change.

  
8. Policing & Crime Act: Emergency services collaboration update

8.1 As discussed at the last Police and Crime Panel, the Commissioner has decided to defer 
his decision around fire governance.  In line with statutory requirements set out in the Act 
around the duty to collaborate, the PCC has entered discussions with Gloucestershire 
County Council about future collaboration governance arrangements and areas for potential 
exploration.  The table below outlines the areas in which the Commissioner feels there are 
opportunities for future collaboration:

Collaborative 
opportunity

Rationale (summary of initial thoughts) Best Practice examples

Revisit previous discussions / business cases with a view to further discussions with other forces and 
FRA’s
Merger of vehicle 
workshops

Explored in previous business case but benefits not 
realised.  Opportunities now to learn from 
experience in other areas.  Colocation will facilitate 
this exploration. 

 Humberside
 Cheshire

Shared Fleet 
Management

A dedicated lead for fleet management is currently 
a recognised gap in GC.  Exploration of co-funding 
a post for GC & F&RS will facilitate collaborative 
opportunities as well as realise efficiencies for both 
services.  The post could be located at a shared 
workshop for all services. 

 Cleveland 
(specifically fleet 
procurement)

Shared police / fire 
control room 

Again, explored within previous business case and 
we now have the opportunity to learn from 
experience in other areas.  Original rationale for 
business case should be revisited to ascertain 
whether identified benefits are still possible and 
potential new benefits to be identified.

 Greater Manchester
 Kent
 Merseyside
 Hampshire

Estate
Scope all retained 
fire stations for 
suitability to 
transform to ‘Tri 
Service Centres’ 
particularly in rural 
areas
Scope opportunities 
to develop joint 
Police & Fire station 
in Dursley under 
‘One Public Estate’ 

This would improve visibility and therefore 
reassurance in rural communities.  Colocation will 
help support joint neighbourhood planning and 
wider aspirations around ongoing operational 
activity.

Experience in other areas shows multi-agency 
colocation supports the prioritisation of community 
safety trough customer focused service delivery.

Effective sharing of resources will realise both 
capital and revenue savings benefitting all 

 Devon & Cornwall
 Cumbria
 Greater Manchester
 Dorset
 Hertfordshire
 London
 Merseyside
 South Yorkshire
 Thames Valley
 Norfolk
 Bedfordshire

Page 21



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

Collaborative 
opportunity

Rationale (summary of initial thoughts) Best Practice examples

and how this can 
support local plans re 
housing stock.
Work to provide ‘Tri 
Service Centre' in 
Cirencester (as 
above)

organisations involved.  This could support savings 
requirements for all public services or be reinvested 
into front-line provision (for example).

Will build on existing estate sharing as highlighted 
in draft IRMP.

 Northumbria

Equipment
Audit and report on 
opportunities to 
share assets / 
specialist equipment 
such as lighting / lifts 
/  off-road vehicles 
etc.

To identify opportunities for shared resources, 
agreements to access resources and therefore 
potential savings to all services.   

Organisational functions
Exploration of 
opportunities with 
forensic services

This may involve training but also, potentially, the 
use of GC forensic services in fire investigations. 
Unsure of practice in other areas but keen to 
explore opportunities in Gloucestershire with a view 
to becoming a national trailblazer in this area.   

Training and 
development

Explore shared training opportunities such as with 
officer safety, home fire risk assessments and 
home security assessments as well as wider joint 
operations.  

 County Durham and 
Darlington

 Cumbria
 Derbyshire

Procurement Explore potential for shared procurement 
opportunities utilising SWPPD framework such as 
with uniforms.   

Joint preparation for 
HMICFRS 
Inspections

Explore opportunities for sharing staff and their 
skills required when preparing for inspections.

Stores Identify capacity for shared stores for example with 
officer uniforms.  

Operational opportunities
Shared 
neighbourhood 
prioritisation linking 
with local CSPs

Links with the aspirations of Safer Gloucestershire 
and ensures statutory crime and disorder reduction 
obligations are met.  Should be supporting asset 
based working with communities to identify and 
work with lead community members.  

Link to other partners such as housing to support 
them in tackling risks in, for example multiple 
occupation households and anti-social behaviour 
and carrying out home safety checks.

In some areas this has extended to tackling 
extremism and this should also be explored in the 
county.  

 Derbyshire
 Hertfordshire
 Essex
 Thames Valley
 Northumbria

Preventative / early 
intervention with hard 
to reach / vulnerable 
communities

Links with draft IRMP objective one – increased 
focus in prevention and protection initiatives.  By 
working together and utilising different 
organisational strengths (such as data and 
reputation) work collectively to support our most 
vulnerable communities.  

For example, in Greater Manchester multi-agency 
work with disadvantaged younger people around 
positive role models has been led by the F&RS.  

 Greater Manchester
 Kent
 Leicestershire
 Northumbria
 Essex
 Hertfordshire

Page 22



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

Collaborative 
opportunity

Rationale (summary of initial thoughts) Best Practice examples

This has supported crime and anti-social behaviour 
reduction, unemployment and community cohesion.  

Information sharing / 
Predictive analysis

Build on the work already underway around data 
analytics and explore opportunities for the fire 
service to benefit from the identification of 
vulnerable communities.  Link to early intervention 
and prevention activities.  

 Greater Manchester

Joint performance 
data team

Establish a joint unit to undertake business 
analytics and production of performance data.

Search (Misper) 
(Premises) and 
rescue. Consider & 
develop joint ‘Blue 
light communications 
function’.

Utilising rescue expertise and equipment of GF&RS 
(such as heat seeking cameras and boats) to 
support with particularly high risk missing persons.  

 Essex
 Hampshire
 Lancashire
 Surrey & Sussex
 West Midlands

Explore police 
support for ‘Fire Dog’ 
search capability.

Explore whether there are opportunities to make 
links between the police and fire dogs sections and 
whether fire dogs can assist in search and rescues.  

Rural intervention 
vehicles

Provide more visible uniformed presence in 
communities, support with engagement, 
reassurance and prevention.  Facilitate rapid 
response to incidents such as RTCs, suspicious 
circumstances, vulnerability checks and shared 
intelligence gathering.  

 Northamptonshire

8.2 As stated, the governance of collaboration is currently being discussed, however the PCC 
has been keen to stress the importance of financial transparency for all services involved.  
This will ensure there is a clear understanding of the parameters of any future joint work.    
To this end the Commissioner has lobbied the Minister for Policing and Fire, Nick Hurd MP 
and the Home Office to set out clear expectations for all FRAs to produce a clear budget 
paper which clarifies the fire precept along with a Fire & Rescue Service medium-term 
financial plan, the equivalent for the Police being already available.  

9. Estates update

8.1 The estate remains unchanged since the last report.

10. Staff pay settlement

10.1 The Government recently announced that it will lift the public sector pay cap and increase 
police officers’ basic pay by 1% with a further 1% non-consolidated bonus. However, at this 
stage it has made no firm commitment to increase the pay of other members of the police 
service by a similar amount. All other Constabulary employees such as PCSOs, scenes of 
crime officers, ICT and other staff are expected to receive a similar rise in basic pay: the 
bonus element is less certain.

10.2 The PCC has taken the view that the possibility of different sections of the workforce being 
treated differently is unfair and ignores the huge contribution made by all police staff.  As 
such, the decision has been made to fund a one off bonus for all Constabulary staff.

10.3 Prior the Government announcement, the OPCC already assumed a 1% percent increase 
in salaries next year but the Home Office has stated that to pay the additional 1% non-
consolidated bonus payment Forces must dip into budget reserves if necessary. 

10.4 The Constabulary has a general reserve which, on Government advice, equates to 5% of 
the annual budget. The cost of paying all of our staff the 1% non-consolidated bonus 

Page 23



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

payment, in addition to that agreed for officers, would be £236k and will be spread across 
two financial years - £138k during 2017/18 and £98k in 2018/19. This will bring our reserves 
down by a further 0.25% but as the money is already in reserve, it will have no impact on 
council tax payers or the day to day running of the police. The rest of the Constabulary’s 
reserves are earmarked for long term investment such as new equipment, vehicles and 
technology. 

11. Independent Custody Visitors Annual Report 2017

11.1 Independent Custody Visiting (ICV) Schemes exist to provide assurance to local 
communities that they can have confidence in the way in which the police treat people who 
are held in their custody. Ensuring effective management and oversight of the ICV Scheme 
is a statutory responsibility of the PCC.   

11.2 ICVs are volunteers who visit our custody centre, in pairs, and speak to detainees who are 
being held in police custody.   Visits are random and unannounced so that the police do not 
know when they will take place.  The OPCC recruits volunteer ICVs to undertake the role 
and provides them with support and on-going training to ensure that they can discharge 
their role effectively. The OPCC is also responsible for administering annual general 
meetings and producing an annual report.  The information below has been taken from the 
2017 annual report which was presented to the ICV AGM on the 23rd of September.

11.3 Following a number of personnel changes within the OPCC, in April this year it was agreed 
that the OPCC would have two leads for the Independent Custody Visitors scheme.  These 
are the two Policy Officers for the OPCC, Amanda Segelov and Ruth Greenwood.  
Budgetary restraints mean that having a dedicated ICV Scheme Manager is not currently 
possible but by having two officers leading on scheme management, it is hoped that there 
will be more capacity to develop the scheme and improved resilience overall.  

11.4 Since taking on the role of scheme managers, work has begun to build on the 
developments implemented by the previous scheme manager, Grace Boughton.  This 
began with finalising the recruitment campaign initiated by Grace in 2016.  

11.5 The OPCC launched a recruitment drive on 29 July 2016 in order to find 8-10 individuals 
with the flexibility to make evening and weekend visits, and to increase the diversity of 
volunteers (age and ethnicity predominantly).  There were approximately 40 expressions of 
interest in the role and 11 completed applications.   Applicants were given the opportunity 
to visit the custody suite in late October to ensure they were fully aware of what the scheme 
involved prior to interview. In total nine of the eleven applicants were successful at interview 
and seven had their initial training on 11 March 2017.  Two further applicants had been 
successfully vetted but were unable to attend the initial training.  

11.6 Following the induction training, the cohort of ICVs increased from six to thirteen.  New 
ICVs were able to begin their visits following training, and accompanied by existing ICVs to 
support individual learning.  As well as increasing the numbers of ICVs, a priority for the 
recruitment programme has been to try to develop a more diverse scheme 
demographically.  The scheme had been criticised by HMIC for this in the past.  The charts 
below demonstrate that with regards to diversifying the demographics of volunteers, the 
recruitment campaign was relatively successful.

Page 24



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

 

11.7 At the 2016 AGM last year, it was reported that the visits were taking place around once 
every two weeks (14 days).  This followed a drop in the number of volunteers in the 
previous year.  At the AGM this year, it was reported that visits were occurring, on average, 
every 13 days.  Taking the period from April, which is when numbers of volunteers 
increased, there has been an average of one visit every 12 days.

11.8 This analysis shows that we are still outside of the target of one visit every ten days but the 
trend is definitely in the right direction.  Following discussions at the AGM, it has been 
agreed to base the rota around seven day blocks rather than 10 from 2018 to increase the 
number of visits.  

11.9 The graphs below provide a visual overview of the visits this calendar year:

Page 25



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

11.10 The charts above show that visits are predominantly occurring on Thursdays (33%) and 
Mondays (28%) and between 3pm and 6pm (44%).  Over the next year we would like the 
ICVs to try to spread their visits more evenly across the week and day.  Ongoing analysis 
will monitor this throughout the year.  

11.11 The total number of people spoken to during visits over this period is 90 out of a possible 
155 detainees.  This means that during visits ICVs are speaking to 58% of detainees in 
custody.  This is an increase compared to last year where 44% of detainees were spoken 
to.  

11.12 No issues of concern have been reported in relation to the standard of the environment in 
custody or with individual detainees that required the attention of the Chief Officer’s Group 
within the Constabulary.   Of the 120 comments from ICVs received over the period: 
 there were 3 occasions where detainees were reported as being either ‘agitated’, ‘angry 

and incoherent’ or ‘not happy’;  
 there were 4 reports of visible injuries; 
 mental health is mentioned 5 times;
 there were 26 mentions of detainees being asleep;
 detainees being at interview was mentioned 16 times;
 there were 5 requests for food or drink;
 on 1 occasion there was a report of urine on the floor – the comments indicate that a 

deep clean of the cell was organised;
 there are 3 reports of detainees requiring medication;
 4 requests or notes of medical assistance are recorded;
 a blanket was requested once as there was 1 report of the cell being cold; and
 ‘no issues’ / ‘no problems’ / ‘all OK’ was reported 38 times

11.13 Over the next twelve months the priorities for the scheme are to further increase the 
number of volunteers with ongoing recruitment, to train and vet two additional ICVs to 
enable visits under the Terrorism Act to be made and to provide ongoing training for ICVs in 
line with the Independent Custody Visitors Association (ICVA) recommendations.  

12. Chief Constable Recruitment

12.1 The current, temporary Chief Constable's contract is due to expire in May 2018.  However, 
following the decision to defer the fire governance agenda, the PCC has asked me to begin 
the process of recruitment for a permanent Chief Constable with a view to completing the 
process before Christmas.
    

Page 26



GPMS – NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
FOI - OPEN

13. OPCC Staff update

13.1 Following recruitment earlier in the summer, the Commissioning Team have now been 
joined by a new Project Officer.  The post is an industrial placement for graduates and for a 
fixed term contract of 12 months.  The successful candidate is Kacey Semmens and she 
joined the team on the 11th of September.  

13.2 There are no further staffing updates.  

Paul D. Trott
Chief Executive
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Gloucestershire
31st October 2017

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNUAL 
REPORT
of the Police & Crime Commissioner

1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



Re-inventing the wheel
It could be said that ‘neighbourhood policing’ is back 
in fashion. And if so, you might attribute it to the 
fallout from the dreadful attacks that have blighted our 
country in recent months.

Whilst there is no doubt that what happened in London and 
Manchester has concentrated minds, I have been stressing the 
importance of the police knowing their communities since my very 
first day of campaigning back in 2012. 

Community or neighbourhood policing remains at the centre of my 
second Police and Crime Plan, the strategy for my next four years in office, because local 
policing is ‘the golden thread’ that links police with their communities.  

Crimes involving drugs and knives, hardly unique to Gloucestershire, have led to levels of 
violence we’ve not seen since the 1980’s. Over the past year, the Constabulary has done 
outstanding work in bringing offenders to justice; people who seek to flood our county with 
drugs and rule by violence & intimidation. 

But whilst it is absolutely right to 
vigorously pursue those who seek to 
harm us, I do not believe enforcement 
alone will win the peace. That’s why 
in the new Police and Crime Plan I 
stress the importance of maintaining 
neighbourhood policing even if it means 
adopting a different approach.

Tempting though it may be to throw all 
the resources at the here and now - especially in the wake of terrorist-related incidents that 
cause widespread shock and panic - it is important that neighbourhood teams are valued and 
maintained as they are vital to the relationship between the police and the public.

Every day we see the good work of the officers in the Constabulary, an organisation of which 
the county can be proud. But we must always strive to do better.

  

Martin Surl 
Gloucestershire Police and Crime Commissioner

Page 30



Police and Crime Plan

2017-2021

Office of the 
Police and Crime
Commissioner
Gloucestershire

‘Less crime, more peace and good order’

Police and Crime Plan 2017-2021
The new updated Police and Crime Plan, the overriding strategy the police 
must work to, was launched at a public event on 31 March and you can read 
it on the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) website  
www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk. 

It will be in operation for the next four years and will take us 
beyond the next election in 2020.  

I see no reason for major changes though as with 
my first plan, I canvassed a wide range of views to 
supplement my own, including the Constabulary, 
the general public and voluntary sectors. The Plan 
was presented to the Police and Crime Panel in 
November where it was supported. 

You can see a selection of films, shown at the public launch 
event, which illustrate each of the Plan’s priorities, by following these links:

•  Accountability and accessibility: 
http://bit.ly/2t74GaR

•  Older but not overlooked: 
http://bit.ly/2t7AwUI

•  Safer days and nights: 
http://bit.ly/2uzQKKK

•  Safe and social driving: 
http://bit.ly/2v9bMgl

•  Young people becoming adults: 
http://bit.ly/2uA3dyc

•  Safer cyber: 
http://bit.ly/2vtc296

www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk Page 31



www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk

Changing faces:
Gloucestershire’s first Deputy PCC checks-in 
Former BBC Political reporter Chris Brierley began his 
new job as Gloucestershire’s first Deputy Police and Crime 
Commissioner. 

Mr. Brierley, 36, who joined BBC Radio Gloucestershire in 2005 and 
has also worked for BBC Radio 5-Live, BBC West’s Politics Show 
and the corporation’s political unit in London, will share Police and 
Crime Commissioner Martin Surl’s burgeoning workload.

As well as leading on a number of projects, he represents the PCC in 
meetings, in public and acts on his behalf as required by the Police 
Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the legislation which 
created PCCs. His appointment was confirmed by the Police and Crime Panel in September.

Mr. Brierley said, “There is so much good work going-on in Gloucestershire under the 
umbrella of the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC). I am keen to play my 
part and help communicate it.”  

County’s first woman police chief who smashed the 
glass ceiling…. 
Police and Crime Commissioner Martin Surl paid tribute to 
Gloucestershire’s former Chief Constable, Suzette Davenport, 
following her retirement in April.

Ms Davenport, 54, became Gloucestershire’s first woman Chief 
Constable in the Constabulary’s 174 year history in 2013, having 
been appointed by Mr. Surl following his election as the county’s first 
PCC. 

Mr. Surl said, “Reaching the top of her profession just as the 
Government introduced Police and Crime Commissioners could 
have led to understandable tension. Instead, Suzette and I have been able to form an 
effective, professional working relationship that always put Gloucestershire first.

“She has had a remarkable career at local, regional and national level. I would like to thank 
her personally, and on behalf of the county, for her dedication and commitment during one of 
the most turbulent periods in the Constabulary’s history.” 

Page 32



www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk

… but the new Chief is temporary
Gloucestershire’s former Deputy Chief Constable Rod Hansen 
has been promoted to Chief Constable with a 12 month contract.

Police and Crime Commissioner Martin Surl explained his decision to 
appoint a chief constable on a temporary basis had been influenced 
by uncertainty over the future of the fire service.

He said, “The Government is keen to see if a closer alignment would 
benefit both fire and police and lead to an even better service for the 
people of Gloucestershire. I have an open mind but if that proves to 
be the case, the responsibilities of the Chief Constable in 12 months’ 
time could be very different to what they are today.

““Rod Hansen has been an outstanding officer at local, regional and national levels. I had no 
hesitation in offering him the job of temporary Chief Constable and I am grateful to him for 
accepting under these circumstances”. 

(and the PCC was re-elected)
Martin Surl was re-elected as Police and 
Crime Commissioner for Gloucestershire 
on 6 May 2017. He received 78,592 first 
and second preference votes giving him 
a majority of 27,025. The turnout was 
30%, up from 17% in 2012.

Martin is now one of only three Independent 
PCCs in the UK. Of the others, 20 are 
members of the Conservative Party, 15 Labour and 2 Plaid Cymru.

Amongst his other responsibilities, Martin is a member of the Police ICT Company; the Police 
Reform and Transformation Board and is a former chair of the Association of Police and 
Crime Commissioners.

Locally, he chairs Gloucestershire’s Criminal Justice Board and is a member of Leadership 
Gloucestershire, the county’s Health and Wellbeing Board and the South West Police 
Collaboration Strategic Board. 

Altogether, the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) is represented on 
another 30 partnership boards.

Page 33



www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk

PCC’s plan branded “an appalling waste of money” nets a tidy profit
When Police and Crime Commissioner Martin Surl scrapped plans to build a new 
police station in Gloucester, the Taxpayers Alliance (TA) called it an ‘appalling waste 
of money’. 

A little over 12 months later, the old fire station 
site in Eastern Avenue, which was at the heart 
of the discarded plan, was sold to the German 
supermarket chain Lidl for £1,500,000.

Based on the figures on which the TA made its 
assessment, it represented a profit of around 
£400k.

Mr. Surl said, “It’s not really about the money, 
though it is always nice when a plan works out. An out of town police station was not a good 
idea and we could never have afforded to build it. 

Commissioner keeps pledge on Forest of Dean Police Station 
It took longer than expected but the plan to make Coleford the main centre for the 
police and other criminal justice services in the Forest of Dean was achieved in 
October.

The former magistrates’ court building, which 
shares the site, was bought by the Police 
and Crime Commissioner in December 2015 
following its closure in 2011. This is now 
also home to the Community Rehabilitation 
Company (CRC), the National Probation 
Service and provides a space for use by the 
community.

The building was formally opened and re-
named the Forest of Dean Police Station by 
Lady Bathurst, as High Sheriff of Gloucestershire, on 8 October, 2016.

*Although the police no longer operate from Lydney Police Station, the building is being retained by the 
PCC for other possible use in the future should the economy improve.

Page 34



www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk

Independent Custody Volunteers (ICVs)
Independent custody visiting is a vital part of 
the work of the Office of the Police & Crime 
Commissioner (PCC) in ensuring the police 
service is open and accountable to the people 
it serves.

It is a statutory responsibility for the PCC to 
have an Independent Custody Visiting scheme 
in place which is responsible for organising 
and overseeing the scheme, in consultation 
with the Chief Constable. 

Independent Custody Visiting is a well-established system whereby volunteers make 
unannounced visits to police stations to check on the treatment of detainees and the 
conditions in which they are held. They ensure that prisoners’ rights and entitlements are 
being observed. The system offers protection and confidentiality to detainees and the police, 
and reassurance to the community at large.

It is the responsibility of the Commissioner to recruit, train, manage and support all volunteers 
appointed to the Gloucestershire Independent Custody Visiting Scheme. 

Gloucestershire has one designated custody 
suite, in Quedgeley, Gloucester. Stroud 
custody suite was de-designated from 1 April 
2011 and is now only used as and when 
necessary. The new custody suite was built in 
Quedgeley alongside the Police Headquarters 
and was opened in 2015.

Independent Custody Visiting has a vital part 
to play in the work of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Gloucestershire in ensuring 
the police service is open and accountable to 
the public.

If you want to know more information about ICVs, please visit the Independent Custody 
Visiting Association’s (ICVA) website: www.icva.org.uk

Page 35



Charge up the Nissan! Shot in the arm for PCC’s plan for greener police cars
Charging points for Gloucestershire’s electric police cars have been installed around 
the county at a considerably reduced cost to the Constabulary.

The Office for Low Emission Vehicles (OLEV), 
which is part of the Department of Transport, 
picked-up 75% of the bill for fitting plug-in points 
at 11 different locations, at a cost of £94,000. 

The agreement also includes three years’ 
maintenance and warranty. 

Mr. Surl said, “We’ve carried out a number of trials 
to make sure the technology is right for the police 
as using electric cars for certain types of jobs not 
only helps to save money, but is better for the environment”. 

In line with his election manifesto, the PCC is keen for the Force to adopt a greener option 
and in March this year bought seven Nissan Leafs. Three are marked cars for use in urban 
areas. The other four will be unmarked for use in other operations.

A further boost for the Commissioner’s long term goal came with news of an agreement with 
National Grid and OFGEM, the industry regulator, over the feed-in tariff for the solar panels on 
Prism House. It means that not only do they currently provide 25% of the energy used in the 
building, but they will pay for themselves within six years. After that, any surplus raised will go 
into the police budget.

Why it’s no longer a dog’s life for the teenager 
who hated school 
To say that Aaron was not very keen on school is 
probably an understatement.  Like many young boys 
of his age, he found it difficult to concentrate. His attendance was sporadic due to high 
levels of anxiety and a lack of motivation. 

When challenged to focus, he would dig his heels in and become rude and aggressive. Work 
placements also fell through due to his reluctance to take part. 

The turning point came when he was given a place on the HALT project where a new Aaron, 
whose name has been changed for legal reasons, began to emerge.

Debbie Morgan, Education Officer at the Cheltenham Animal Shelter said, “On the HALT 
project, we saw a completely different personality. He was engaged and interested, keen 
www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk Page 36



Contact Us
www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk  ●  pcc@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk 

01452 754348

The Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner 
No 1 Waterwells, Waterwells Drive, Quedgeley, Gloucester GL2 2AN.

Why not follow on twitter @GlosPCC or @glos-opcc

If you would like to see this in large print, another language or you need to have it in 
another format, please let us know.

to learn and be involved and developed into a very confident 
young man. 

“Aaron had often talked openly about how he struggled to make 
friends and would behave in a certain negative way to try and 
build friendships with people. The HALT project allowed him to 
build a genuine relationship with one of the other attendees and 
he often said how nice it was to have made an ‘actual friend’ as 
they both shared the same interests in Animal Care.” 

The HALT Project is an intensive, two-week programme at 
the Cheltenham Animal Shelter which is funded by the Police 
and Crime Commissioner (PCC). It is designed to teach 
compassion, respect and responsibility towards both animals 
and people. It is the only one of its kind in the country and one of 78 organisations out of a 
record 167 who successfully applied for support to the Commissioner’s Fund this year.

For an application form, go to www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/funding-opportunities

It is also one of more than 350 projects supported by the Commissioner’s Fund since its 
launch in 2012 and is also part of his “A compassionate approach” in the Police and Crime 
Plan. 

Pawsnote: After a visit to Hartpury College as part of the HALT course, Aaron is now studying 
for a certificate in Animal Care with the aim of becoming a police dog handler. 

To see other projects we have funded please go to  
www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/what-the-pcc-has-done-for-gloucestershire/local-projects-
weve-supported/

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

    
 

POLICE AND CRIME PLAN PRIORITIES  -  QUARTERLY HIGHLIGHT REPORT  
 

1. Aims and Priorities 

 

The Police and Crime Commissioner’s aim is that the Police and Crime Plan will be delivered 
through the inclusion and involvement of the many partnerships and communities in 
Gloucestershire with the aim of making it a safer place in which to live and work. 
 

The Police and Crime Plan is being delivered through: 
 

 Priority 1 – Accessibility and accountability (AA)  

 Priority 2 – Older but not overlooked (OBNO)  

 Priority 3 – Young people becoming adults (YPBA) 

 Priority 4 – Safe days and nights for all (SDAN)  

 Priority 5 – Safe and social driving (SSD)  

 Priority 6 – Safer cyber (SC)  
 

Delivery plans for the above Priorities will be continually developed throughout the period of the 
Police and Crime Plan 2017 to 2021 and will aim to deliver value for money. 
 

The purpose of the Police and Crime Plan Priorities Quarterly Highlight Report is to provide all 
stakeholders with an update that monitors progress in respect of each of the Priorities, to 
include: 
 

 activities achieved during the current quarter; 

 activities expected during the next quarter; 

 any risks or issues identified will be managed through the risk and issue registers; 

 overview of budget. 
 

 

This report is a summary against activities.  Members should note that this information is 
retrospective for the reporting quarter mentioned; as such it is an executive summary.  Due to 
report production timescales, information and updates may have since been superseded and 
will be updated in future reports. 

Report Number 14 

Report Period July 2017 – October 2017  

Author Richard Bradley 

To 
Police and Crime 
Commissioner 

Version V1.0  

Date 2 November 2017 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



 

2 

 

2. Quarterly update on progress for period  

 

 
Accessibility and accountability 
 
Intent: 
To get the right resources to the right situation or problem first time, every time, on time and 
dealing with the matter appropriately and effectively 

To realise the ideal of the local officer working in and with the communities of Gloucestershire 
 

 
1 

 
Citizens in Policing update: 
Work continues in earnest to develop, drive and increase citizens in Policing. The opportunities 
here are becoming more and more significant as we move towards the latter end of 2017 and look 
towards 2018. the implementation of a Citizens in Policing Board to support this is critical to 
demonstrate the Constabulary’s commitment and here are some of the key updates from specific 
areas 
 
Cadet program 
Currently the cadet programme has 52 cadets spread across three units, two of which are based 
at our headquarters in Waterwells and the third at Stroud police station. 
Waterwells 31 cadets 
Stroud 21 cadets 
  
Age range 
The cadets range from 14 to 18 years of age, at the age of 18 they do have the option, subject to 
suitability, to become cadet leaders under the volunteers program (currently we have 4).   
Diversity data 
Two of our cadets are from visible minority ethnic groups and a third is a wheelchair user with 
serious health issues.  We also have two cadets with learning difficulties (Asperger’s and ADHD). 
Linked in with this we have further cadets who would be classed as vulnerable other than by age. 
Role and function 
To promote understanding of policing to younger people and provide practical assistance to local 
policing where possible, to build new skills and promote self-confidence. Inspiring young people to 
work in a practical way in a safe environment while serving the people of Gloucestershire.  
Recruitment/retention plan 
The transition of cadets to become leaders is proving to be successful and helps in the retention of 
volunteers to the constabulary.  Many cadets are now leaving the program due to age and 
therefore we will be looking to open the recruiting process early January 2018. Based on previous 
campaigns, no recruiting problems are envisaged. We will be looking to target hard to reach 
sectors of the population to raise our minority profile. 
  
It is intended to increase numbers to eighty five, with fifty five at Waterwells and thirty at Stroud. 
  
Future planning in terms of A and A to assist our communities especially anything around any of 
our more vulnerable communities 
We are currently in the process of trying to re-launch a junior neighbourhood scheme that could 
link in with the cadets, with young people acting as watch members and coordinators, taking 
ownership within their own streets and helping to identify vulnerable individuals who could be 

Page 40



 

3 

victims of crime.  This will help bridge the gap between old and young. 
 
Special Constabulary 
SC activity in July, August and September 2017: 
Hours dedicated to supporting Constabulary and PCC priorities 
 
July 2017                   3,327 
August 2017              2,655 
September 2017        2,653 
 

Description                                     Number of 
Duties 

 Total Hours  

Neighbourhood Policing 171 13.90% 1351:54 15.66% 
Response 243 19.76% 2394:51 27.74% 
Planned Operation 73 5.93% 678:05 7.85% 
Public Event 64 5.20% 552:36 6.40% 
Training 339 27.56% 2063:06 23.89% 
Meeting 51 4.15% 196:38 2.28% 

Management 64 5.20% 204:51 2.37% 
Other Duties       57 4.63% 237:41 2.75% 
Tri-Force 34 2.76% 385:47 4.47% 
RSE ET (Road Safety Team) 41  3.33%        315:54  3.66% 

 
 Operations (Planned)  
Operations – July – September 2017 
 
Event Title                                 Event Date Estimated Times Officers 
HQ - Force Annual Open Day         16/09/2017 09:00 - 16:00             12  
Driver Training                      12/08/2017 09:00 - 13:00               4  
Driver Training                      05/08/2017 09:00 - 13:00               4  
Meeting to discuss Future & NHP   17/07/2017 19:00 - 20:30             10  
 

 
2 

 
Efficiency and effectiveness - public need and demands:  
 
Work has significantly progressed in this area with the organisational demand review and 
evolution towards new way of working. From key developments in our force Control room with new 
police staff supervisors and key training program implemented, work force modernisation plan and 
next steps being implemented post a review of shift patterns and demand. The whole area of 
business seeking to evolve its approach, working processes and invest in people to ensure we are 
able to deliver a first class service to caller. However we’re also seeking to address and implement 
new ways of working - e-mail is of course a means by which the public can contact us - but 
develops around digital options, online chats, online recording and information exchange all align 
with the priority of harnessing efficiencies from technology, and how we communicate with the 
public and offering a range of options. From crime recording or re-directing to appropriate service 
providers, sharing prevention and intervention information, responding quickly to your needs. 
 
Developing from the demand review work and whole system approach to dealing with public 
needs a new Crime Command has been established and here we are seeking to offer immediate 
accessibility to officers and trained police staff investigators to deal with issues requiring a more 
investigative approach - immediate contact and remove delays and frustrations. The public have 

Page 41



 

4 

asked if we can be more efficient and effective, the PCC plan identifies the need to put more boots 
on the ground and be available - dealing with issues first time the most effectively and 
comprehensively will enable the Constabulary to do this - the development of Initial Investigation 
Teams and then new options for responding to calls for service will deliver a more efficient but 
effective service, deal with demand and ensure we are able to get the right resource to help our 
public. The work is still in development phase and more detail to follow. 
 
 

 
3 

 
Neighbourhood Policing: 
All the above are and will contribute to the Constabulary’s neighbourhood approach being 
delivered to our communities. 
The new approach has been agreed and the 5 principles have a structured delivery plan against 
which we will hold ourselves accountable for and make accessible to our public early 2018. 
 
Work is already underway to ensure our staff in neighbourhood roles are 
 - Dedicated to the role - insulated from unnecessary demand  
 - Capable and competent professionals - Training program being built  to support professional 
approach to problem solving and strength based working 
 - Accessible - new deal with our public on how to share issues, build Relationships with our staff 
and work in Partnership, focus on Prevention and those most Vulnerable in our communities. 
 - well informed and accountable for the work through improved performance information 
 - seeking and developing new ways of working - from Neighbourhood Alerts to digital contact 
 - focussed on public priorities as well as crime prevention and ASB 
  
PCSO forum in place to develop and support our critical staff that are the bedrock of 
neighbourhood policing. Focusing on personal and professional development, skills and capability 
to deliver new neighbourhood approach. 
Review work ongoing to ensure we deliver a fair and equitable service to communities - what is a 
neighbourhood and resourcing needs. 
 
Broader work streams 
Mental Health and Missing 
Youth engagement, diversion  
Restorative Justice 
Road Safety 
Offender Management 
Victim Support 
repeated demand - high frequency users of services 
 
 

4   
Mounted Section: 
The full priority based budgeting approach to the Mounted section pilot has been completed an all 
findings shared with the program board and Management Executive Board. It is recognised that 
this is an expensive but hugely valued and impactive resource and one that the Constabulary, 
PCC and public wanted to keep. Therefore we are maintaining and building on the pilot, in the 
process of recruiting permanent staff and officers and looking to the future deployment and activity 
the section can undertake. Current deployments are supporting: 
 
 

Page 42



 

5 

 Operationally 

 Football posting 

 Night Time Economy 

 high demand locations 

 Community Based 

 hard to reach communities 

 Rural locations (high demand and crime prevention) 
 
The section is supported and led by our Community Harm Reduction Team providing leadership 
and support as we move forward. 
 
Significant opportunities also being explored throughout the County regarding sponsorship and 
next steps for the section in the coming 1-3 years. 
 

5  
Partnership and CSP reviews - these have been completed and all recommendations both for the 
Constabulary approach and CSP have been accepted and are now part of delivery plans.  
They form the cornerstone of the Local policing delivery plan and underpin much of the new 
neighbourhood offer, neighbourhood policing moving forward. 
 

6  
Rural crime;  
 
Significant focus and investment in rural communities and the issues faced. Engagement with 
National Farmers Union (NFU) and NFU Mutual.  
 
Review of Rural Environment Crime Liaison Officer (RECLO) capacity capability and training to 
incorporate PCSOS and volunteer’s performance management information and data sharing. 
 
Cross border and regional meetings with West Mercia/Warwickshire to highlight the prevention, 
intervention and response activity taking place in rural communities. Sharing best practice and 
activity with an audience of 60 including farmer/landowners. Representation from Gloucestershire 
Police, Glos OPCC, West Mercia Constabulary (WMC) and the WMC Deputy PCC.  
 
It was clear that the audience were sceptical about the level of policing assistance they receive, 
however by the end it was apparent that we were all doing quite a lot to keep them safe, and 
certainly did not shy away from the reality of investigating OCG crime, links to travellers and cross 
border issues - let alone localised work. 
 
The star of the show was definitely Constable Ash Weller from Gloucestershire Constabulary   
When he entered the ‘stage’ to give his presentation the audience’s faces visibly changed to  
warm glowing smiles and WMC were taking notes behind him and looking at each other with all 
the impressive things being done and shared - however feedback that its time. Time to share this 
more broadly with our communities!  
 
Formalised leadership from investigation to prevention and develop of Rural Crime Steering Group 
underway.  
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 

6 

7   
Accessibility: 
 
Please see attached documentation regarding neighbourhood Alerts and delivery to our 
communities 
 
1. PDF version of registration form 
2. Link to dedicated website. 
3. Link to Your Community Alerts presentation (with videos) 
4. Example of a website analytics report. This can be recreated based on your preferences. 
5.        Delivery plan initiated and commenced Oct 2017 
 

8   
Initial scoping of a Force Response Unit capable and able to respond to our public in crisis and not 
rely on resources from elsewhere supporting the team unless exceptional and critical demands. 
This is inextricably linked to the work re IT development to ensure appropriate  demand 
management to ensure the right resource deals with public issues first time and insulate dedicated 
neighbourhood officers from inappropriate demands and or changing roles 
.  

 
 

Accessibility and accountability – planned activities in next quarter 
 

 

 Citizens in Policing (CiP) Board minutes and details of next steps re our volunteer capacity and 
next steps 
 

 Local Policing Delivery plan - incorporating key elements moving on the delivery of our new 
approach and Community Harm Reduction (CHR) plan/recommendations including resource 
review, what is a neighbourhood, new deal for our communities accessibility, accountability. 

 

 Force Control Room (FCR) - update on structure, demand and service delivery changes - digital 
101 
 

 Crime Command - update on development and delivery of Initial Investigation Team and digital 
development - Crystallise supporting 
 

 Continued delivery and roll out of neighbourhood alerts.  
 

 Developed Continuous Professional Development (CPD) and Asset Based Community 
Development (ABCD) training program for Neighbourhood Staff for sign off. 
 

 Recruitment and selection Mounted Section staff 
 

 Review of Force Response Unit development 
 

 Leadership changes - responsibility and accountability 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 44

https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/media/3526/2017-09-26-new-paper-registration-form-v2.pdf
https://www.yourcommunityalerts.co.uk/
https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/media/3527/social-media-as-a-contact-channel.ppt
https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/media/3528/digital101socialmediatwitterpocanalysisa.doc
https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/media/3529/proposed-implementation-plan.docx


 

7 

 
Older but not overlooked 
 
Intent: 
That older people need to feel and remain an active part of our communities whether they live in 
their own homes or are in residential care 
Both should be part of the police beat with the local officer being visible and proactive with all 
vulnerable groups 
 

 
1 

 
Preventative Measures: 
Work is still continuing at the local neighbourhood level to support older people to become more 
confident and to reduce the fear of crime, signposting to other support services and support such 
as local luncheon clubs, supported with fire service, cadets and the Special Constabulary. E.g. 
Cheltenham recently had a multi-agency operation targeting a specific neighbourhood in order to 
prevent crime and appropriately signpost and engage with residents. Work is also ongoing with 
Treasure Seekers. Each current geographical neighbourhood has a named PCSO. Part of their 
work will be to identify vulnerable persons within their communities and work with the community 
or through appropriate sign posting to assist them in preventing crime and to encourage 
community engagement to enhance their wellbeing. 
 

 
2 

 
Hate Crime: 
The first round of training is now complete and a performance dashboard in relation to reported 
hate incidents or crimes is well progressed.  The Hate Crime co-ordinator work is developing, 
bringing together multi-agency approaches to reported issues. Messages of thanks have been 
received from the public in relation to how their incidents were sensitively and appropriately dealt 
with. Events have been planned for Hate Crime week the 14 - 21 October. 
 

 
3 

 
Keep Safe:  

 Meeting with Kelly Hennessey-Ford from the Keep Safe project which is continuing to develop 
alongside other partners. The reach of the project continues to build on numbers of safe places 
with over 1,000 in the County.  
 

4   
 Dementia: 
Visits have been undertaken and the police are looking at how dementia training can be 
incorporated into the training of neighbourhood staff and officers. 
 

5   
Cyber Crime: 
The Harm Reduction team have continued their work in delivering specific information to prevent 
persons becoming victims and to recognise the signs that they may have become a victim. Work is 
ongoing at this time to develop this into reported cyber fraud offences.  
 

6   
Hate Crime Training   
The Strategic Lead for OBNO, as Chair of the County Hate Crime and Incident Strategic Group, 
has had numerous meetings with the Hate Crime and Incident Steering Group members in relation 
to the further development of the County Action Plan, planning the programme for the national 

Page 45



 

8 

Hate Crime Awareness Week in14th to 21 October 2017 and the development of a two hour 
training package on Hate Crime and Incidents developed from the Leicestershire University 
Training Package. This was delivered to the Gloucestershire Police Hate Crime Champions by Dr 
Stevie Jade Hardy 
 

7   
Neighbourhood watch  
The Strategic Lead for OBNO, as Chair of County Neighbourhood Watch Association, has been 
liaising with local Neighbourhood Watch Groups with regard to the County Neighbourhood 
Association and its membership of the National Association. Also in  
Relation to rolling out the new Alert system for Neighbourhood Watch. 
 

8   
GL11 Community Hub:   
Visited GL11 Community Hub with the Deputy Police Crime & Commissioner and given the 
opportunity to show the full range of activities for older and vulnerable people and that the project 
is operating effectively for the community it serves 
 

9   
Tewkesbury Borough Council funding fair: 
The Strategic Lead for OBNO visited a Funding Fair in July at the Tewkesbury Borough Council 
Offices. He was able to network with Keep Safe Gloucester Older Peoples Association and 
established that progress on priorities was continuing in line with the proposals contained in the 
funding applications 

10  
Dementia board game: 
In the later part of July the Strategic Lead for OBNO was able to link the Police Lead, (Supt 
Woodall), to several OBNO projects, visiting Forest of Dean District Council to speak to their lead, 
Lena Maller, on the dementia board game developed by her. This game is now distributed across 
the County and actively being used by various groups for training purposes, including the Police. 
 

11  
Adult Education: 
The Strategic Lead for OBNO has attended a number of meetings around the County on Adult 
Education and keeps the group informed of the latest opportunities for learning as it relates to Hate 
Crime and Incidents and Neighbourhood Watch.  
 

12  
VCS Alliance:  
The Police Lead and Strategic Lead for OBNO met up with Sheryl Walpole and exchanged 
information, details of OBNO projects and discussed opportunities to work together.  
 

13  
Kingfisher treasure seekers:  
The Strategic Lead for OBNO has had several meetings with Jan Burn and Katie Tucker from 
Treasure Seekers/King Fisher Church in relation to event planning for the networking event to be 
held on 11 October 2017.  
   

14  
National Hate Crime Awareness week: 
The Strategic Lead for OBNO attended numerous meetings of the Hate Crime and Incident 

Page 46



 

9 

Steering Group re planning for National Hate Crime Awareness week commencing on  
Saturday 14 October 2017.  
 

15  
Stroud Beresford Group:  
The Strategic Lead for OBNO is a Board member of the Stroud Beresford Domestic Violence 
Refuge and attends Board meetings regularly, updating the Board on issues relating to: Police and 
PCC, opportunities to work together, safeguarding and crime prevention. 
 

 
Older but not overlooked – planned activities in next quarter 

 

 
 The multi-agency training day is arranged for the 11 October at Treasure Seekers   

 
 Events have been organised for Hate Crime week 14-21 October. 
 
 Continued multi-agency work in neighbourhoods for prevention and reassurance. 
 
 Review of work for the neighbourhood offer from PCSO's 

 
 
Young people becoming adults 
 
Intent: 
To deliver sensitive, relevant and effective policing ensuring our young people become law-
abiding, productive members of society 
To ensure that the ‘system’ must work for them, not against them 
 

 
1 

 
Raise awareness across the Constabulary of young people’s needs and the issues that 
cause them to offend and how they must be treated with fairness, dignity and respect, and 
to better understand how young people view and experience the Police in Gloucestershire.  
 
A Young Ambassador has been identified  to attend a planning workshop with partners from the 
Youth Justice Partnership Board regarding the delivery of the Youth Justice Plan 2017-19, with a 
view to supporting delivery of YPBA 
 
Training on the Children First project has now been delivered to all uniform officers within 
Gloucestershire Constabulary. 
 
A practitioner working group continues to meet regularly to work towards implementation of the 
Children First project. 
 
Restorative Justice process / flowchart has been simplified and shared across the Constabulary. 
 
The selection process for an additional Police Officer to be seconded to the Youth Support Team 
(YST) is complete, an officer is identified and they will commence their new role late Oct 2017. The 
will be sit within the Community Harm Reduction Team (CHRT) and support the implementation of 
the Children First project across the county. 
 

Page 47



 

10 

Joint training for Custody Sergeants & Inspectors has been delivered by YST. 
 

 
2 

 
To reduce the number of young people entering the criminal justice system as first time 
entrants and reduce reoffending by young people by ensuring that decisions that are made 
by the Police about young people are fair and consistent and seek to divert young people 
from the criminal justice system and ensure they receive the help they need to stop them 
re-offending, as quickly and efficiently as possible 
 
Youth Justice Partnership Board Quarter 1 report shows a continued decline in the number of First 
Time Entrants (FTE) into the Criminal Justice System. 
 
The following Policy Changes have been agreed at Monthly Executive Board (MEB).  
 
Change to Restorative Justice Policy -  
To allow officers to give a young person up to two Restorative Justice  Level 1 outcomes per 12 
month period subject to a decision making process which will include accessing all data held by 
the Youth workers help  line (established as part of the Children First work) and authorisation by 
the duty supervisor. 
 
This change is to be reflected in the Restorative Justice policy. 
 
  
Change to charging decision making process -  
The Constabulary agrees to defer all disposal decisions relating to young people ‘who admit their 
offences’ to the Joint Decision Making Panel (JDP).  
Other than;  
A: The most serious offences which are indictable only.  
B: Where the custody Sergeant believes there are exceptional circumstances which would mean a 
referral to the JDP is not appropriate. 
  
 A Youth Support Team Help Line - has been established to allow officers dealing with young 
people the opportunity to speak with YST at the earliest opportunity and seek relevant information 
and expert guidance in order to inform decision making. This currently operates between the hours 
of 9am-9pm Monday to Friday. 
 
2 x Police Sergeants have identified to sit on the Joint Decision Making Panel for young people 
once the Children First programme commences from Restorative Gloucestershire and CHRT (The 
Aston/Great Expectations). 
 

 
3 

 
Reduce numbers of young people being brought into custody and for those in custody 
reduce the length of time spent in custody and ensure that support is provided throughout 
the process and that police have the information they need about that young person in a 
timely manner to enable more effective support and decision making. 
 
As an interim measure, until we are able to locate the Youth Custody Coordinators in the Custody 
Suite, the Youth Support Team have established a Help Line (as above). YST have engaged with 
training Custody Sergeants and Inspectors regarding the use of this line and whilst the expectation 
is that contact should be made by Officer In the Case (OIC's) in order to prevent young people 
coming into custody unnecessarily, where this has not happened contact must be made as soon 

Page 48



 

11 

as a young person comes into custody. The YST advice line will support requests for Appropriate 
Adults and liaise with relevant professionals regarding any potential Police and Criminal Evidence 
Act (PACE) bed from the Local Authority.   . 
 
A policy change request has been progressed for Gloucestershire Police which will allow 
constables and PCSOs the latitude to utilise 2 level 1 RJ outcomes in any 12 month period for 
young people in the correct circumstances. This was previously restricted in all cases to 1 RJ per 
12 month period. 
 

4  
Ensure that all young people involved in anti-social behaviour receive the support and early 
intervention they need in order to reduce further incidents of anti-social behaviour and the 
number of formal sanctions being sought, as a result of strong partnership working and a 
clear consistent approach. 
 
Solace has now been expanded to Cheltenham.  
 
Early Help Partnerships identified in each district with contribution from local police, YST, Social 
care and other partners- better identification of young people causing concern at an earlier stage 
to enable better targeting of resources e.g./ Pre Aston group running in Tewkesbury ( Aston and 
YST) 
 
The Aston & Great Expectations projects are established as key avenues for referral from the 
Children first work stream. 
Sgt Nicky Nolan, Community Harm Reduction Team,  (Aston Project) will sit on the Joint Decision 
Making Panel for young people involved in low level Criminality, this will allow early opportunities 
for early intervention and diversion. 
 

5  
Create strong and successful pathways for young people to engage in support and divert 
them away from crime and re-offending through the improved use of data in order to 
develop a profile need and ensure resources are targeted effectively. 
 
Improvements in data sharing via the Youth Justice Partnership Board (YJPB) and Safer 
Gloucestershire continue to be developed- this will enable better information sharing. 
 
It has been agreed that Youth Support Team (YST) will now breakdown Quarterly Youth Justice 
data by District rather than just Countywide so we can better understand the issues and target our 
resources more effectively. Similarly the Constabulary have created a dashboard  to understand 
crime analysis and hot spots- YPBA leads have consulted and requested that Anti-social 
Behaviour (ASB) can be identified as long as any incident where the victim or suspect is a young 
person.  
 
Data relating to young people and drugs offences are now being explored to seek early 
opportunities to support young people. 
 
We have established a Custody Subgroup to the Youth Justice Partnership Board to ensure that 
trends and patterns leading to young people in the county going to custody are captured and that 
the learning is sharing across the partnership in order to inform preventative services. 
 
The Reoffending project is well established and an Action Plan has been devised to address key 

Page 49



 

12 

patterns and trends in relation to reoffending emerging from the project. This is overseen by the 
YJPB. 
 
Safer Gloucestershire is now established and will provide Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
(JSNA) across the county which will help to inform priorities in relation to young people’s offending 
and ASB. The YJPB Priory Lead sits on this group. 
 

 
Young people becoming adults – planned activities in next quarter 
 

 
 Introduce Custody workers into the custody suite. 

- Commence the Children’s first project. 
- Commence Joint Decision Making Panels. 
- Accept and implement the policy change allowing 2 x RJ outcomes for Young People. 
- Review the Constabulary Drugs policy to ensure young people are support not disaffected by it. 
- Welcome and train the new youth offending team police officer. 
 

 Introduce Youth Custody Workers into the custody suite- vetting completed, Induction programme 
delivered and IT and working arrangements established. 
 

 Children First project goes live 6th November- focus of this quarter will be successful 
implementation and embedding of project ( including joint decision making panel) In addition to 
completion of the Children First Project Plan 

 
 Induction programme for new Seconded Police Officer and clarification of the seconded officer roles 

within YST and specifically in relation to the Children first Project.  
 

 Agree roles and responsibilities in relation to the new Youth Restorative Intervention being 
introduced under Children First  across YST, CHRT ( Seconded Officer and Aston) and Restorative 
Gloucestershire 

 
 Development of appropriate Restorative Interventions required under Children First project 
 

  

 
Safe days and nights 
 
Intent: 
To better manage the Gloucestershire night-time economy, with alcohol related crime and 
disorder being reduced 
That everyone should be able to go out to our parks, pubs and streets without fear 
 

 
1 

 
Threat/Harm/Risk/Investigation/Vulnerability/Engagement and Intervention/Prevention: 
Work is continuing as in the last quarter.  Through a tasking process Eastgate Street in Gloucester 
has been identified as being suitable for a longer term intervention/prevention approach to reduce 
reported incidents and offer reassurance to the public, business owners and residents in this area. 
This is a multi-agency approach including the new City wardens. The strength based community 
building team continue their work in specific areas of the city to assist in providing longer term 
solutions to persistent issues.  Each geographical neighbourhood now has a named Pcso to work 
with communities.   

Page 50



 

13 

 

 
2 

 
Dangerous Drugs Network (DDN) : 
Dangerous Drugs network is still a Force priority and the prevention of violence will be a priority for 
wider Strategic Safer Community Group.  Multi-agency efforts are being focused on reducing the 
exploitation of the vulnerable and to bring offenders to justice. There have been a number of 
significant arrests with offenders receiving custodial sentences from the court; this work is linked in 
with the community harm reduction team in assisting a vulnerable victims or potential victims with 
an exit plan and multi-agency support for this. The use of bladed weapons some of which is linked 
to the drugs trade is still an issue and a multi-agency strategic group is now place to consider the 
longer term options for work to prevent persons carrying bladed weapons whilst pro-active work is 
taking place to discourage persons having weapons in public, whilst appropriately dealing with 
offenders.  Where appropriate closure orders are still used as a tactic. 
 

 
3 

 
Neighbourhood Policing Project: 
Repeat locations/person profiles are now considered as a part of the tasking process.  Eastgate 
street has been selected for a multi-agency log term intervention and prevention plan. To reduce 
reported incidents and increase business and public confidence. This work is being led by the 
community harm reduction team. 
 
The work of Aston, Great Expectations and Solace continues, focusing on diversion & where 
necessary effective enforcement. 
 
Fresher’s week was managed through multi-agency support plan. 
 
The mounted section has become part of the community harm reduction team. 
 

4   
Domestic Abuse: 
This work continues to be led through the Domestic Abuse and Violence board and reported and 
monitored through this process.  The work is high on the agenda of the Public Protection Bureau 
and the Local policing response and neighbourhood teams. Stalking Clinics are currently in 
progress to improve knowledge of risk and service delivery in this area. This work is being 
progressed and reviewed through the Public Protection Bureau (PPB) meetings. The Multi Agency 
Sharing Hub project continues its work and support to this area. A Domestic Abuse Working Group 
is in place led by a Detective Chief Inspector and representatives across all areas of the business 
to look at service improvements. Officers take domestic violence seriously and will deal positively 
with incidents they attend. 
 

5  
Communications and Engagement: 
There have been a number of planned communications across a wide platform including social 
media themed to the highest risks and priorities through this quarter.  
 

6  
Automatic Number Plate Recognition - ANPR/CCTV: 
This is business as usual in relation to the ongoing work improved working environments for CCTV 
covered by police. This has proved invaluable in relation to preventing crime/incidents especially in 
relation to the night time economy and in relation to specific serious offences.  
ANPR has been used in a number of pre-planned events to support the safety of these events. 

Page 51



 

14 

 

7  
Coordinate the Management of Organised Crime Groups (OCG): 
The work of the Local responsible Officer for OCG's has now been passed to the Local Inspector 
form Local Policing who has geographical ownership for the area most impacted by the OCG, 
although the multi-agency plan to manage/disrupt the OCG remains a force wide responsibility 
with partners. The overall strategic management of these has been embedded into the tasking 
process. 
 

 
Safe days and nights for all – planned activities in the next quarter 

 Continued work on Force priorities including DDN. 
 

 Further development of management plans for OCG at a local level. 
 

 Further work on the neighbourhood offer through the work of PCSO's in relation to assist in 
community building. 
 

 Op Switch the communication and engagement plan for when the clocks go back and 
Halloween/bonfire activities. 

 

 Embed the work of the mounted section with the community harm reduction team 
 

 Local Policing to continue to work effectively with PPB in order to assist in supporting those 
identified most at risk of harm. 

 

 
Safe and social driving 
 
Intent: 
That people are able to move around our communities in safety and with as much ease and 
convenience as possible 
That the police will enforce the law when necessary, but will all work to reduce offending and 
antisocial driving 

1  
Forest proactive patrols:  
Newent including Road Safety. 5/7/2017 
 

2  
Summer DD campaign: 
 promote zero drink campaign - Forest 19/7/2017 
 

3  
Cheltenham Taxi Private Hire Op: 
 29/7/2017 - 34 vehicle stops 21 Taxi licence checks 
 

4  
Forest road Safety Operation: 
16 SC's 6 Cadets and Tri Force officers 19/8/2017 - 57 vehicle stops plus 8 Traffic Offence Report 
(TOR), 38 negative breath tests, 1 seized vehicle.  

Page 52



 

15 

5  
Op Crompton - Forest of Dean Roads Safety operation 19th August –  
Stop sites were set up at Bathurst Pool Lydney, Staunton and Corse Business Park A417, Newent 
Business Park, Cinderford in the Valley Road/Steam Mills area and Parkend Fancy Road/New 
Road. In total there were 16 special constables, 4 cadets and 3 cadet leaders along with 5 tri force 
officers and a dog for the morning. We had a dedicated Control Room run superbly by SC Martyn 
Garrett. Of the 16 special constables, 5 of these had just completed their initial training and for 
most it was their first duty. 57 stop checks on vehicles with 51 breath tests and a number of 
offences detected with either ticket or driver education at the road side. 
 

6  
Forest proactive patrols including road safety:  
10 vehicle stops, 2 x Traffic Offence Report 1 Vehicle Defect Rectification Scheme plus intel 
submissions 13/9/2017 
 

7  
Cheltenham Taxi Private Hire with Council Licencing officers:  
23/9/2017 vehicle stops. 
 

8   

Special Constabulary Roads Safety Education and Enforcement Team (RSEET):  

update Q2= SC Patel and SC Gladwin (both RSEET) are investigating use of Go Pro cameras for 
mobile phone enforcement in a similar way to Close Pass, making use of plain clothes officers on 
bikes (if this is legally possible). The sticking point seems to be that if we mount the camera on a 
cycle helmet (which would be ideal); it then comes into the sphere of a "police body-worn camera", 
with all the associated protocols. A good idea that might be scuppered by well-meaning but 
restrictive usage policy.  
 
= Summer drink drive op in Stroud 07/07/17 Huge thanks to everyone who supported the first high 
profile operation of the Summer Drink Drive Campaign, held at Stroud on 07/07/17, with Stroud 
MP David Drew in attendance, along with the press and local Road Safety co-ordinator, Charles 
Pedrick. 
 
The results were excellent! 
3 x Traffic Offences Report  (Speed and insurance) 
46 negative breath tests (with a number of people showing some alcohol in their systems albeit 
below the limit) 
1 x arrest/process for Positive Drugs Wipe (m/cycle) (Special Constables’ Luke Rickaby and Jon 
Cooper, station procedure by Andy Thomas) 
1 x Vehicle seizure for no insurance (Special Sergeants Nick Ellicott) 
Also dealt with 1 x Road Traffic Collision (RTC)  
  
= 11/07/17 - LPA Tasking at Twyning ref alleged speeding. SC Smart (RSEET) and 2 officers (one 
RSEET and one Tewkesbury) attended there early morning (time of reported worst offending) to 
monitor situation. Full report submitted to Insp Godwin at Tewkesbury. Result - basically no actual 
problem, just perception of complainant, who had complained to the police via his MP.  
 
= We had Drink Drive operations at Dursley and Gloucester in July for the summer campaign. 
 
 
 

Page 53



 

16 

 9   
Safer Driving with Age (SAGE): 
This is a programme designed by the Road Safety Partnership to provide older drivers with 
support, guidance and coaching so that they can continue driving for as long as it is safe to do so. 
SAGE is specifically mentioned in the National older driver strategy ‘Supporting Safe Driving into 
old age’ as the first step in the framework of good practice. 52 older drivers completed a SAGE 
assessment between July and September. Presentations on SAGE has been delivered to AGEUK, 
clinicians at Cheltenham Hospital, the Engagement Officer at Gloucestershire VCS Alliance, and 
will soon be presented to Driving Instructors in Swindon who wish to develop the scheme and 
several other Age related groups. 
 

10   
Occupational Road Risk:  
Occupational Road Risk presentations have been delivered on 5 occasions to employees who 
drive as part of their work.  During the last quarter we have developed initiatives with Gloucester 
Rugby Club, Forest Green Football Club, and the British Army at ARRC, South Cerney and 
Beachley Barracks.  The second highest cause of UK Armed Forces deaths between 2012 and 
2016 is land transport collisions, with hostile action being the 4th highest. A two day event for the 
1000+ staff at EDF, Barnwood, is being prepared involving Police, Highways England, Fire and 
Rescue and a range of other agencies. 
 

11  
Mobile Phone Campaign:  
Public spotting and reporting offenders mobilephone@glosfire.gov.uk  
This local initiative, in collaboration with the Police Criminal Justice Department, where reports are 
received from the public that identify drivers using a mobile phone while driving is going well.  The 
campaign was presented by the Road Safety Team at a European Traffic Police Network 
(TISPOL) conference in Rome in February, and since it was launched a total of 481 letters have 
been issued, with 101 letters being issued during this last quarter. 
 

12  
Drive iQ Gloucestershire (DIQG): 
This is a localised certificated online driving awareness programme delivered by the road safety 
team and Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service.  
For the new academic year, 242 students have registered on the programme. 
 

13  
Wellfest: 
In September, the Road Safety Team, Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service and the Police 
supported the Hartpury College Wellfest event. 320 students attended 2 road safety workshops on 
encouraging young people to speak up against careless or dangerous driving 
(byPASSthEdanNGER) and another designed to educate about the harm caused by drink and 
drug driving. 
 

14  
The What If...Roadshow 2017 :  
This started on the 25th September and will run until the 10th November. The intervention is aimed 
at 17-24 year olds who are most at risk of becoming a casualty from a road traffic collision. So far 
35 higher education establishments have engaged with the programme educating 4400 students. 
 
 

Page 54

mailto:mobilephone@glosfire.gov.uk


 

17 

15   
Close Pass:  
The first Gloucestershire operation, designed to tackle drivers who overtake cyclists dangerously 
close, ran on 27th July. Five drivers were stopped for education plus vehicle and document 
checks, breath and eyesight tests. Press interest included a drive time item on BBC Radio Glos 
and two reporters from local press.  
Road Safety provided support in identifying the location for the Gloucestershire operation and the 
design and supply of the education leaflet used by Tri Force across the three counties. As the 
primary aim of this operation is to raise awareness of the issue with drivers we also ran a co-
ordinated social media campaign before, during and after the operation (#GiveSpaceOrWait) and 
had over 70,000 individual views. 
Some forces are now considering 3rd party reports of close passes and other near misses for 
prosecution. These reports can also provide useful data on the location and frequency of such 
incidents which are used to target Close Pass ops. This is being explored but is not currently 
available in Gloucestershire so, to gather information in the interim, Roads Safety have set up a 
data only self-reporting facility https://roadsafety-gloucestershire.org.uk/closepass/. Over 40 
reports have been received in the first few months. 
 

16   
Road safety Community Hub: 
The Road Safety Community Hub received and responded to 252 enquires and concerns between 
1st Jul and 30th Sep 2017. 40% of queries are about speeding, others include visibility issues, 
parking cycling, signing. Generic email address: roadsafetyhub@glosfire.gov.uk and the public can 
also reach us on-line using the “contact us” tab on the RSP website. 
 

 
Safe and social driving – planned activities in next quarter 
 

 
 "Drive Insured" campaign 16-22 Oct 

 

 EDF Road Safety Event 18-19 October 
 

 Young driver presentation for Forest Green Rovers 
 

 Supporting BRAKE Road Safety week 20-26th November 
 

 Anti-Drink Drive campaign in December 
 

 
Safer Cyber 
 
Intent: 
To ensure Gloucestershire is safer as people, commerce and other organisations increasingly 
live, trade and work on-line.  It underpins personal safety, economic growth and proseperity, in 
urban and rural environments, by supporting pepole of all ages, organisations and businesses 
 

 
1 

 
DEFEND (What are we going to do to ensure that citizens and businesses within 
Gloucestershire have the knowledge and ability to defend themselves?) 
 

Page 55



 

18 

Initiative established with academia to leverage existing ICT real estate within county schools to 
share harm reduction messaging. 
 
Working with the Head of Early Years Education Provision in the County to provide Cyber Harm 
reduction messages and updates County-wide. 
 
Approximately 1000 young people received direct internet safety advice during this reporting 
period.  
 
Positive digital footprint training provided to police cadets as part of validation of content for wider 
delivery to young people 
 

 
2 

 
DEVELOP (How will we continue to innovate and develop further relationships with 
partners to ensure that the Constabulary have the necessary tools and skills to 
combat cybercrime effectively?) 

 
Work undertaken with Inclusion Gloucestershire to establish a project to target Safer Cyber 
Messages to disabled people in Gloucestershire. 
 
Raising awareness with Gloucestershire County Council to promote Cyber Essentials in 
organisations insured by the Council.  
 
Work commenced with partner statutory agencies to exercise for cyber related critical incident as 
part of organisational resilience and preparedness. 
Updated cyber harm reduction training delivered to Gloucestershire Council’s Youth Support Team 
staff to ensure the existing skills remain relevant. 

 
The Safer Cyber team have developed a programme of exercising in relation to cyber incidents, 
that it will share amongst statutory partners to further enhance the resilience and business 
continuity for those involved in critical service provision. 
 
A schools based hackathon has been developed for projected delivery in early 2018, designed to 
promote good cyber hygiene amongst competing schools and identify young talent that could be 
developed to assist with bridging the cyber skills gap nationally. 
 

  
DETER (What are we going to do to detect, understand, investigate and disrupt 
hostile cybercrime, pursuing and prosecuting offenders?) 
 

A community hackathon has been developed for projected delivery in early 2018, designed to 
steer talented individuals towards potential development and employment opportunities, reducing 
the risk of them resorting to criminal activities. 
 
Data obtained from warrants successfully executed, have resulted in the takedown of over 1800 
websites being used by criminals to commit fraud and have been shared with national colleagues 
for further analysis. 

 

 

 

 

Page 56



 

19 

 
Safer cyber – planned activities in next quarter 
 
 

DEFEND:  

 Launch of a new messaging campaign to highlight the behaviours that lead to sextortion. 

 Cyber awareness training to be delivered to the force hate crime co-ordinator for dissemination 
to hate crime champions, ensuring that efforts to combat hate crime can leverage knowledge 
around digital tactics. 
 
DEVELOP:  

 Deploy an ongoing programme of cyber inputs to staff to continue to develop staff skillsets in 
relation to digital aspects of day to day policing. 

 Deliver cyber awareness training to the NHS safeguarding in schools and mental health teams. 

 Development of cyber vulnerability awareness project for children with autism. 
 

 

Page 57



 

20 

3. Overview of Budget 

 
Commissioner’s Fund – Priority Leads Fund at 26 October 2017 

 

 

Priority 
 

 

Projected Spend 2017/21 
 

Awards to date 2017/18 

Accessibility and accountability £40,979 £40,979 

Older but not overlooked £89,000 £22,650 

Young people becoming adults £336,110 £265,151 

Safe days and nights £212,981 £89,981 

Safe and social driving £700 £223 

Safer cyber £135,450 £31,450 

Other £71,618 £56,201 

Projected Expenditure £887,089 £506,636 

Total Budget c.£1,000,000  

 

Page 58


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	8 September 2017

	4 Chief Executive Report
	6 Annual Report
	8 Police and Crime Plan Highlight Report

